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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

To Our Shareholders,

2017 was a remarkable year for us. We made a move to one of the
most recognised capital markets in the world. The shares of Win Win
Way Construction Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) were listed (the
“Listing”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 July 2017 (the “Listing Date"). We believe that the
Listing provided additional funding capital to improve our financial
position, strengthened our position in Hong Kong to capture more
sizeable and profitable projects and strengthened our capital base.

Established in 1999, we are a construction company principally
providing foundation works and ancillary services, as well as general
building works in Hong Kong. The long established relationship with
customers, subcontractors and the suppliers and the commitment
of our management team to provide quality work and service has
played a vital role in building up our reputation and the Group's
competitiveness in the market.

In the coming year, we believe the construction market in Hong
Kong will remain competitive and challenging. We faced with cut-
throat competition among contractors in tendering for new projects
which have been widely commented in the media and among peers,
we are mindful not to reduce our profit margin without considering
the negative impact to our shareholders’ interest. Nevertheless,
we remain confident and are well-positioned in the market. In this
financial year, facing such steep competition, we are still able to
be awarded 10 new contracts with an aggregate contract sum of
HK$112.3 million. As at 31 December 2017, we had a total of 18
contracts on hand (including contracts in progress and contracts yet
to be commenced) and the relevant awarded contract sum of these
contracts on hand amounted to approximately HKS$1,943.4 million.
The amount of contract sum yet to be recognised as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately HK$708.8 million.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased to
present you with the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2017. During the financial year, our net profit excluding listing
expenses (the “Adjusted Net Profit") reached HK$40.2 million, with
a turnover of HK$821.9 million. Current ratio increased to 2.1 and
gearing ratio substantially decreased to 25.1%.

Looking ahead, we remain positive about the prospects of the
construction market of Hong Kong, with the Government’s continued
commitment to infrastructure investments and housing policy by
various short, medium and long term land supply initiatives. Just like
our name “Win Win”", we are convinced that we will continue to build
a win-win situation with our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, customers,
subcontractors and suppliers for their continuous support, as well as
the management team and the staff of the Group for their hard work
and dedication.

Lee Kai Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT B A am B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of construction
services which mainly include foundation works and ancillary services
and general building works, and sales of piles. The Group mainly
serves customers in Hong Kong from the private sector but also
serves customers from the public sector.

In October 2014, the Group entered into a construction contract
in Saipan as main contractor, providing foundation works and
ancillary services and general building works (“Saipan Project”),
which is a construction project of a resort hotel located at San
Antonio, Saipan, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands
("CNMI"). The foundation works lasted from May 2015 to October
2015. The general building works commenced in May 2016 and
was preliminarily expected to complete in or around February 2018.
However, due to (i) the inclement weather; (ii) change of policy on
worker visa application, such taht a substantial amount of workers
could not obtain the necessary work permit carry out the work in
Saipan; and (i) change in design as instructed by the customer, and
permit for this work not having been obtained, the progress of the
Saipan Project was hindered. The Saipan Project is now expected to
complete in February 2019 and the Board will continue to closely
monitor the progress of the project. Since the delay was not due to
factors attributable to the fault of our Group, we have applied for
extension of time with the customer. On 19 March 2018, the customer
has issued a letter to us indicating its agreement to our application for
extension of time and the completion date of the Saipan Project was
extended to February 2019.

Construction services

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 18 contracts
on hand (including contracts in progress and contracts yet to be
commenced) and the relevant awarded contract sum of these
contracts on hand amounted to approximately HKS$1,943.4 million.
The amount of contract sum yet to be recognised as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately HK$708.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

Foundation Works and Ancillary Services

Foundation works mainly include mini-piling, percussive piling,
rock socketed in steel H-piles and bored piles, together with the
construction of pile caps. Ancillary services mainly include site
formation and demolition works, for example, clearance of the site,
excavation, demolition of a building or any substantial part of a
building.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were 44 (2016: 44)
foundation works and ancillary services projects contributing revenue
of HK$131.3 million (2016: HK$370.4 million) to this business segment.

General Buildings Works

General building works mainly include structural alteration and
additional works, development of superstructures such as entire
dwelling, office buildings, stores, public utility buildings, farm
buildings, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were 11 (2016: 9)
general building works projects contributing revenue of HK$622.9
million (2016: HK$344.6 million) to this business segment.

Trading of Piles

The piles are manufactured and supplied by BINFHEEAE
R 2 7A] (‘GZYC"), the related party of the Company. Win Win Way
Materials Supply Limited ("WWW Materials”), the indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, has been granted the exclusive
distribution right by GZYC for its pile products in Hong Kong
from August 2010 to July 2020. The piles sourced from GZYC are
"“YANGCHENG" precast prestressed concrete piles (the “PHC Piles”).

On 1 March 2017 and 24 June 2017, WWW Materials entered into
a purchase agreement and a supplemental purchase agreement,
respectively (collectively, the “Existing PHC Pile Purchase Agreement”),
with GZYC pursuant to which the WWW Materials agreed to make
a one-off purchase of a total of 164,000 meters of PHC Piles of four
different specifications and 4,500 units of steel cross shoes from GZYC
to satisfy our Hong Kong customers’ demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT B A am B AT

In light of the delays in certain projects of the Group's customers,
WWW Material and GZYC have agreed to extend the expiry date of
the Existing PHC Piles Purchase Agreement from 31 December 2017
to 30 June 2018 by the supplemental agreement to the PHC Piles
Purchase Agreement dated 15 November 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, trading of piles
contributed HKS$67.7 million (2016: HK$0.1 million) revenue to the
Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017, we completed 11 projects
involving foundation works and ancillary services, and 1 project
involving general building works.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$821.9 million (2016: HK$715.1
million). The increase was mainly attributable to (i) increase in general
building works projects during the year, together with contribution
from Saipan Project for its general building works commenced in May
2016; and (i) revenue contributed from sales of piles during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the overall gross profit was
HKS$113.9 million (2016: HK$126.5 million), while the overall gross
profit margin was 13.9% (2016: 17.7%). The gross profit and gross
profit margin of the projects are affected by a number of factors,
including scope of work, technical complexity, geological conditions
of the work sites, variation orders and/or work programme, and
therefore varies from project to project. Foundation work projects
undertaken by the Group generally have a higher gross profit margin
compared with general building work projects. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, 82.6% revenue of construction contract
segment was contributed from general building work projects (2016:
48.2%). The decrease in gross profit margin was due to higher portion
of revenue from general building work projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

General and administrative expenses (the "G&A Expenses”)
primarily comprise staff costs, business development expenses,
transportation expenses, depreciation, bank charges, office expenses
and professional charges that includes the non-recurring listing
related expenses. The G&A Expenses for the year increased by
approximately HK$11.4 million to approximately HK$81.4 million,
compared with approximately HK$70.0 million in last year, which
was mainly due to additional staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) of approximately HK$5.3 million, legal and professional
fees of approximately HK$4.1 million and promoting expenses of
approximately HK$2.5 million incurred during the year.

As a result, profit for the year has decreased from approximately
HK$42.1 million in last year to approximately HK$22.9 million,
representing a decrease of 45.6%. Excluding the non-recurring
listing related expenses, the Adjusted Net Profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$40.2 million (31
December 2016: HK$61.5 million), representing a decrease of 34.6%.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Failure to obtain new projects

Almost all of our revenue is mostly derived from contracts awarded
through competitive tendering which are not recurring in nature.
Whether we will succeed in our tender process depends on a number
of factors, including the pricing and other terms and conditions
offered by our competitors. There is no guarantee that we will
succeed in the tender process or maintain comparable tender success
rates in the future.

There is no assurance that we will be invited to or are made aware
of the tendering process or that our tenders will be selected by our
customers. We may have to lower our service fees or offer more
favourable terms to our customers to increase the competitiveness of
our tenders. The failure to reduce our costs accordingly may materially
or adversely affect our profitability and results of operations. In
addition, there is no guarantee that we will secure new projects or
business opportunities from our customers after completion of the
existing projects, If we cannot maintain similar amount of contracts or
obtain new projects of similar or larger contract sum on a continuous
basis, our results of operations, financial condition as well as business
prospects may be materially and adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

Failure to estimate the costs involved in the implementation of
the project and delay in completion of the project

Whether we are able to submit tender proposal at a competitive price
with adequate profit margin and maintain our profitability depends
on various factors. We generally adopt a cost-plus pricing model and
determine the tender price by taking into account factors comprising
the scope and complexity of the project, the site conditions, project
time frame, estimated construction materials costs, the labour and
machinery requirement, extent of subcontracted works required, our
relationship with the potential customer, and the prevailing market
conditions. A majority of our contracts with customers were fixed
price contracts. Once we and the customer agree on the tender price,
we generally will have to bear any additional costs incurred. If we falil
to properly estimate the project costs or if there is any unforeseen
factor leading to any increase in costs, we may be subject to cost
overruns, which will turn result in lower profit margin or even a loss
for a project.

Furthermore, our contracts entered in normally contained specified
completion schedule requirements and liquidated damages provision
(i.e. we may have to pay customers liquidated damages if we do not
meet the schedules). Liquidated damages are typically levied at an
agreed rate for each day of delay that is owing to our default. We may
need to pay liquidated damages resulting from any failure to meet
the completion schedule requirements of our contracts, to the extent
that our customers do not grant us time extension. This may reduce
or diminish our expected profit and cash inflow from the relevant
contracts.

There is no assurance that we will not encounter cost overruns or
delays on our current and future projects and our customers may
not agree to extend the completion date or grant us time extension.
If such cost overruns or delays occur, we may experience increase
in costs exceeding our budget or be required to pay liquidated
damages, hence reducing our expected profits and cash inflow
that may be generated from our contracts, and may result in
material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial
performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

Changes in labour costs or construction material costs

Labour costs and construction material costs represent a significant
portion of our cost of sales. For projects without pre-bod agreements
with our subcontractors or suppliers of material, we prepare
tenders based on estimated project costs (which mainly include
subcontracting charges and construction material costs) plus a mark-
up margin. However, the related actual subcontracting costs and
material costs will not be determined, either until after we enter into
agreements without customers or when those costs are fixed and
pre-agreed between the subcontractors or suppliers and us during
the tender preparation stage. Any material fluctuations in such
charges or costs during this period may affect our profitability.

Competitive environment

The construction industry in Hong Kong has many participants and
is competitive. We consider that generally construction companies
operating in Hong Kong play the role of competitors as well as
business partners in our construction business. Occasionally, new
participants may which to enter the industry. They may do so if they
have the appropriate skills, local experience, necessary machinery and
equipment, capital and are granted the requisite licences by relevant
regulatory bodies. Increased competition may result lower operating
margins and loss of market share, which may adversely affect our
profitability and results of operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, WORKING
PARTNERS AND EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains long-term relationships with its customers
and working partners (including subcontractors, suppliers and
consultants), some of which have established more than 10 years of
working relationship with the Group. The close working relationship
can also be demonstrated by the increasing number of customer
portfolios and continuous cooperation with working partners which
may be engaged by the Group in one or more of its projects at the
same time. Building successful long-term relationships with them
is a key element of the Group's business model, which is closely
interlinked with all the other elements of its model. Successful long-
term relationships are built on trust — a trust that the Group is able to
provide quality service and excellent customer experience. To achieve
this, the Group needs experienced people with the right skills and
capabilities as well as continuous supports from its working partners
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT B A am B AT

The Group also maintains a very stable and experienced management
team and an amicable long-term relationship with its employees.
The Group’s key management team comprises executive Directors
and senior management, the biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report. The Group's experienced management
team, coupled with a stable pool of skilled labour, is one of its key
drives in delivering high quality work to customers in order to attain
high customers’ satisfaction.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATION

The Group mainly undertakes foundation works and ancillary services,
as well as general building works in the private sector in Hong
Kong and is thus subject to the rules and regulations implemented
by the Buildings Department which regulates contractors in the
private sectors. The Directors confirmed that during the year ended
31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Group
had obtained all the registrations and certifications required for its
business and operations in Hong Kong, and had complied with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material respects.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in
its business activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but are not
limited to, encouraging employees to reduce paper consumption by
reuse of single-sided printed paper, to assess the necessity of printing
where appropriate and to use duplex printing. The Environment,
Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be published
within three months after the publication of this annual report on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B R e AT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

RBES MBERRRAREE

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175 F2016%F
12A31H 12H31H

Current ratio’ B L & 2.1 16

Gearing ratio (%) TE AR EE 2 (%)? 25.1 365

Net debt to equity ratio (%) R B TS A L R (%) 1.7 210

Interest coverage’ F BB - & 20.0 244

Notes: Bt o

1. Current ratio based on the total current assets divided by the total 1. MELLFRIBETBEERERATB B ELE
current liabilities. Ho

2. Gearing ratio based on the total debt (which includes bank loans and 2. BREEREEEAE (BERTERRRER
obligations under finance leases) divided by total equity and multiplied EAHE) B ARE 2 48 B IR LA100%RT B ©
by 100%.

3. Net debt to equity ratios based on net debts (which include bank loans 3. FEEESLETBESEFE (RERTERE
and obligations under finance leases less cash and bank balances) BMEMRERERRSRBITES) B ARRASE
divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. e LA100%5T & o

4, Interest coverage based on the profit before taxation and interest 4. F S B AT AR RBR TR AR A 2 F BB LA EE £ 0 R

divided by the total interest expenses incurred.

Current ratio increased from 1.6 as at 31 December 2016 to 2.1 as at
31 December 2017, mainly due to increase in cash and bank balances.
Gearing ratio decreased from 36.5% as at 31 December 2016 to
25.1% as at 31 December 2017, mainly due to the net addition in
equity after including net profit for the year and new shares issued
upon the Listing. Net debt to equity ratio decreased from 21.0% as at
31 December 2016 to 1.7% as at 31 December 2017, mainly due to
increase in cash and bank balances and total equity. Interest coverage
decreased from 24.4 for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 20.0
for the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly due to larger decrease
effect of profit before interest and tax, compared with finance costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B ST am L D AT

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$56.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$19.5 million).
The Group expected to fund the future cash flow needs through
internally generated cash flows from operations, bank facilities and
equity financing.

The capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of HK$239.6
million and debts (bank loans and obligations under finance leases) of
HKS$60.1 million as at 31 December 2017.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management. Apart
from certain debts including bank loans and obligations under
finance leases, the Group did not have any material outstanding
debts as at 31 December 2017. In any case, the Group may utilise its
banking facilities of HK$160.0 million, of which HK$67.4 million remain
unused as at 31 December 2017.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing will be utilised in accordance with
the proposed applications set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”). The table below sets out the
proposed applications of the net proceeds and actual usage up to 31
December 2017:

R2017F12A3H  ASEERE RIRITEHRY
S6 1A BB T (20165128318 1 1958 BHE T) o
AEEBHEEBRALENNIEELERE R
BITEERREREARKBASRIEEES

R2017F1N2A3A  ASENRBRALRESE#ER
2306EBETREERE (RITEREBEHEFE)
601 BB BT

AEETERSEEHARIEFEICE -BETESE
(BIRERITERLBEBEALE) N R20179F12
AR AEBEVEFMERNREEEE - NEE
AIEAERIER T8 A ERITREE 16008 &8 T
R2017F12A318  EFHE/T4E BB TAEH)
)Eﬁ °

LHREREREAR
/8 5

ETAERIEFERIREA AR HEA2017F6 A
S0EMBRER ([BRER]) TEMEETRRE
e TRETIMEZIBFENRETAEREE2017
FNAJENER RS :

Proposed Actual usage up to
application 31 December 2017
EE2017F
1283181
BT A% BERMAZE
HKS million HKS million
AEBT AEAETT
Strengthen our Hong Kong market mee®L MR E BN T ISHA
position to capture profitable projects ~ SAEIZEJEF|IE B 16.5 16.5
Acquire additional machinery BERRIMEN SR E
and equipment 94 -
Finance the issue of surety bonds for RMARKRIERELEELD
future projects RERHES 16.5 -
General working capital —REBER 4.7 4.7
471 21.2
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEES

The Group had 353 employees as at 31 December 2017. The Group
offers competitive remuneration package that is based on overall
market rates and employee performance, as well as performance
of the Group. Remuneration package is comprised of salary,
performance-based bonus, and other benefits including training and
provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2017.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance
leases of approximately HK$9.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$17.0
million). The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured
by the lessors’ charge over the leased assets with net book values of
HKS$0.1 million as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: HK$6.2
million). In addition, as at 31 December 2017, bank deposits of
HK$36.3 million were pledged to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for those disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group's transactions are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars. As the Hong Kong dollars is
pegged to the United States dollars, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the Hong Kong dollars and
the United States dollars to be insignificant.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider using hedging instruments in respect of significant foreign
currency exposure as and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT B A am B AT

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases office a number of properties under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are 2 to 5
years and the lease arrangements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. For details of the lease commitments,
please refer to note 21 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October
2015 with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. In preparation of the listing of the Company's shares on the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent the reorganisation pursuant
to which the Company became the holding company of the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group on the date of Listing (the
“Reorganisation”). For details of the Reorganisation, please refer to
note 2(b) to the financial statements.

Apart from the Reorganisation in relation to the Listing, there were
no significant investments held, material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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SHARE OPTIONS

Written resolutions of the sole shareholder were passed on 23 June
2017 to adopt the share option scheme (the “Scheme”). No share
options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of
adoption.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report.

PROSPECTS

In view of the growth prospects for both public and private
development projects, the Group intend to expand the business
capacity and scale to strength the market position in Hong Kong
to capture more sizeable and profitable projects. The Directors
believe that the Group can capture such opportunities and take an
active part in the foundation works and ancillary services, as well as
general building works required for such projects. The Group intend
to strengthen Hong Kong market position and further diversify the
customer base by pursuing works from more private residential
developers.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEHREEABER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors during the year end up to
the date of this annual report is set out below:—

Executive Director

Mr. Lee Kai Lun (“Mr. KL Lee”), aged 69, is the Chairman and
executive Director of our Group and is responsible for strategic
planning and overall development. Mr. KL Lee appointed as our
executive director on 6 May 2016. He obtained degrees of Bachelor
Arts in Architectural Studies and Bachelor of Architecture from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1970 and 1972 respectively.
He has been a corporate member of Royal Institute of British
Architects since February 1974, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Architects since February 1974 and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects since July 2006. He is also a registered architect
under Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong and authorised
person (List of Architects) with the Buildings Department of Hong
Kong. Pursuant to section 45 of the Buildings Ordinance, he has
been appointed as a member of the Appeal Tribunal Panel of the
Development Bureau of Hong Kong since 2009. He has been the
sole proprietor of Kailun Lee Chartered Architect which has been
providing architect and interior design services since 1974. Since
September 2012, he served as a partner of KLDL Consultants which
provides development and design consultancy services.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEHREEABRER

Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan”), aged 60, is an executive Director of
our Group and is responsible for business development, quality and
technical assurance. Dr. Kan joined our Group in January 2003 and
appointed as the executive Director on 5 October 2015. He has over
25 years of experience in the constitution industry in Hong Kong. Dr.
Kan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science from the Heriot-Watt
University in July 1981, majoring in civil engineering. He also obtained
a degree of Master of Science in Engineering Geology from Imperial
College of Science and Technology in August 1983. In December
1987, Dr. Kan was awarded the degree of Doctor of Philosophy by
the Victoria University of Manchester. Before joining our Group, Dr.
Kan was employed as an engineer in Sir William Halcrow & Partners
Limited in the United Kingdom from April 1986 to September 1988.
Dr. Kan then joined Tralfagar House Technology Limited in the United
Kingdom as a senior geotechnical engineer from October 1998 to
January 1989. After that, Dr. Kan worked in New World Development
Company Limited in Hong Kong from February 1989 to April 1992
and his last position was the chief geotechnical engineer who was
responsible for providing geotechnical consultancy services. Dr. Kan
then joined Sunlink Limited, which was a foundation construction
firm, as a director from May 1992 to March 2003. At the same period,
Dr. Kan also served as the director of Precast Piling & Engineering
Company Limited. From 1994 to 1997, Dr. Kan served as the director
and general manager of Shanghai Metro-Sunlink Real Estate Limited,
which was a property developer. During 1998 to 1999, Dr. Kan also
served as commercial representative of People’s Government of
Wuging District in Tianjin of the PRC. Then, Dr. Kan worked as a
Technical Director in Join Ocean Construction Machinery Engineering
Company Limited which was a construction contractor from 2003
to February 2004. From November 1993 to 1997, Dr. Kan worked
as director at Waysome International (Tianjin) Hotel Limited which
was conducting hotel operation. From January 1994 to 1997, Dr.
Kan also worked as director at Hotel (Tianjin) Property Development
Limited which was conducting property development. Since July
1993, Dr. Kan has been acting as the general manager of Waysome
Taxi (Tianjin) Company Limited which is conducting taxi rental
business. From June 2009 to October 2014, Dr. Kan worked as director
at Parsons Brinckerhoff (Tianjin) Limited which was conducting
construction engineering design and consultancy services.

Annual Report 2017 3k

HESEL (EEL])  copt BEEAEEHRT
EX WAEERER EENMEMRE -GiEL
M2003F 1 A INAAREE K015 10 A5 ABERE
BRTES BN EBBRELEEB2FU L& -
M98 7H - BETR R EFRERFE AT
TEEEIBRIE L BT - 71983 8 A IR R
RSB EE TR E 218 2 - By - 181987
FRA BELIRESHIFELN DT RERNEE
TEAL o INAREE Z B 7R19865F4 H £19884F9
FHIM - 5181 B Sir William Halcrow & Partners
Limited Hi £ 280 — 8 o 7219885 10 H 219894 1
A S EE &I AE R Tralfagar House Technology
Limited HESHREARTEM— B -HZ @iEL
R1989F2 8 E19NF4 A BHIN BBt RERE
BRARMAER EBUAEBRE L TRAM &
BEiRME T TEEAIRS - 8199245 H ZE20034F
A ELEEMAMERERNRBIESRA
AIEAES - RE N IE T I EEREATT
BIRABRARES - B1994F £1997F  HEL
METHERER S BEEEARARE
FEFIARLCTE o FA1998F 19994 HARE - R 18 L JRiE
FRBEXETR SRARBTEFERE LLE:

B 20034 2200452 A - 18 T R 255 B % Join
Ocean Construction Machinery Engineering Company
Limited ¥E TR ES o 7A19934F 11 5 2219974 - f]
BIREREEE (KB RNAEBRAGLETES
— B AR ERIE EE 199451 8 £1997
F-BHETNEL(R2)FHEREBR QRN
FEE—W ZRRREWEERE -B19935F7H
BEEE—EREERR (RE)HBEERA
BIEFBACIR 2R RIS A S 2T © 1R20094F
6 AE20145 108 - BB LRAMAM (RF) BERE

ERAFIEAEST B ZAFNERETER
s R A AR o

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 15 & & 242 iR B R A 7

19



20 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 s 2 £+ % B IR A /)

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEHREEABER

Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr. SM Lee"), aged 58, is an executive Director of
our Group and is responsible for business development, tendering
process and daily operation. Mr. SM Lee joined our Group in 2000
and appointed as the executive Director on 5 October 2015. Mr. SM
Lee was awarded a Diploma in Civil Engineering Studies from the
Technical Institute of Education Department of Hong Kong in July
1981. Mr. SM Lee has over 20 years of experience in the construction
industry in Hong Kong. Before joining our Group, Mr. SM Lee was a
technician engineer of Franki Contractors Limited from July 1981 to
June 1982. Mr. SM Lee then worked in Shine Construction Company
Limited as a site engineer from July 1982 to May 1985. Mr. SM Lee
joined Leighton Bruckner Foundation Engineering Limited as a site
agent from May 1985 to March 1994. After that, Mr. SM Lee worked
in Intrusion Prepakt (Far East) Limited as a project manager. Mr. SM
Lee served as a production manager of Sum Tat Piling & Engineering
Company Limited from October 1995 to February 1997. During
October 1997 to December 2005, he was a director of Polystar
Engineering Limited. The above mentioned companies were all
foundation contractors.

Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (“Mr. Wong”), aged 54, is an executive Director of
our Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for production, site management
and supervision. Mr. Wong is a founder of our Group and appointed as
the executive Director on 5 October 2015. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of experience in the construction industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
attended secondary school education in Hong Kong and graduated
in July 1982. He has been awarded a Technically Competent Person
T1 Certificate by the Construction Industry Training Authority of Hong
Kong in May 2005. Before founding our Group, Mr. Wong worked
as a site engineer of Shine Construction Company Limited which
was a foundation contractor from August 1982 to March 1985. Mr.
Wong was employed as a leveler by Leighton Bruckner Foundation
Engineering Limited which was a foundation contractor from April
1987 to April 1990. Mr. Wong was a partner of Lung Tang Construction
Company which was a civil engineering contractor from April 1990 to
February 1999.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEHREEABRER

Mr. Kwong Po Lam (“Mr. Kwong"), aged 61, is an executive Director
of our Group. Mr. Kwong is responsible for quality and technical
assurance. Mr. Kwong appointed as the executive Director on 6 May
2016. Mr. Kwong has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Before joining our Group, he worked as assistant engineer of
Stresstek (H.K)) Limited, in which he was responsible for construction
site management and supervision, from January 1980 to March 1981.
He then worked as structural designer of Gordon Wu & Associates, in
which he was responsible for engineering design and construction
site inspections, from April 1981 to September 1982. He then joined
Ove Arup & Partners Hong Kong Limited as an engineer, in which he
was responsible for civil/structural engineering design and on-site
supervision, from September 1982 to January 1986. From February
1986 to November 1989, he was the assistant head of the structural
section and structural engineer of KNW Architects & engineers
Limited, in which he was responsible for site inspections and
supervision, processing engineering plans submission and providing
structural engineering advices. He was employed by the Hong
Kong Government as structural engineer from December 1989 to
August 1990. He then joined Dywidag-Systems International Canada
Limited as engineer from February 1992 to December 1993 and was
mainly responsible for project planning, civil/structural engineering
design and site supervision. He has been working at Wong & Cheng
Consulting Engineers Limited which is specialised in engineering
design, preparation of drawings and technical specifications, contract
administration, site supervision and other related works since January
1994 and is currently its managing director. He was awarded with
an associateship in Civil and Structural Engineering from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly known as Hong Kong Polytechnic)
in November 1981. He also obtained a degree of Master of Science
in Engineering (Civil Engineering) from the University of Hong Kong
in November 2000. He has been holding the following memberships,
namely (i) member of the Institution of Civil Engineers; (i) member
of the Institution of Structural Engineers; and (i) member of the
Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British
Columbia, Canada. He was admitted as fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers in July 2003. He was qualified as Chartered
Engineer of the Engineering Council of the United Kingdom in
May 1986, and a Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers
Registration Board of Hong Kong in November 1995. He was also
authorised as Civil Engineer by the Land, Public Works and Transport
Bureau of the Macao Special Administrative Region in January 2016.
He was qualified as registered structural engineer since 1987 and is
currently authorised person (list of engineers), registered inspector
(list of engineers) and registered geotechnical engineer with Building
Authority. He obtained the Certificate of Class | Registered Structural
Engineer of the PRC in July 2001. He was also admitted as a member
of The Macau Institution of Engineers in Junes 2017.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (“Mr. Fan”), aged 67, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 6 May 2016. Mr. Fan was
conferred honorary fellowship of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010 and has been the adjunct professor of the
department of building and real estate in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University since 2011. Mr. Fan has over 40 years of experience in
structural design and construction management, inter alia, Mr. Fan
has worked for the Buildings Department for approximately 9 years
and gained wide experience in dealing with the regulations and
procedures of Hong Kong Government. During March 1980 to May
1988, he was employed by the Hong Kong Government as structural
engineer. From July 1990 to March 1998, he worked at Kam Wo
Construction Company Limited, a company principally conducting
general construction and his last position was the chairman. He
worked at Daido Concrete (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 544) from May
1988 and his last position was executive director. From March 1998
to June 2000, he was a director of Siu Yin Wai & Associates Limited,
a company mainly provided structural consultancy services. He
served as managing director of Joint Management Technologies
Limited which was a general construction contractor from June 2000
to March 2001 and was responsible for construction supervision.
He worked as director of Paul Y. Construction Company Limited
which was a general construction contractor from March 2001 to
November 2003 and was responsible for project supervision and
daily management. He worked at Hyder consulting Limited, a global
design and consultancy firm listed on London Stock Exchange, from
November 2003 to May 2009 and his last position was the head of
facade engineering department. He has been acting as a director
of Head Benefit Limited and Johnny Fan & Associates Limited which
are both structural consultancy company since May 2009 and June
2012 respectively. Mr. Fan was awarded higher diploma structural
engineering from the Hong Kong Technical College on 31 July 1972.
Mr. Fan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science with honors in July
1976 and a degree of Master of Science from the City University of
London in January 1979. Mr. Fan has been a member of the Institution
of Structural Engineer since 1979. Mr. Fan has been a registered
structural engineer and authorised person (list of engineers) with
Building Authority since 1987. Mr. Fan was admitted as fellow of the
Institution of Structural Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers in January 1994 and February 1996 respectively. Mr. Fan
obtained the Certificate of Class | Registered Structural Engineer of
the PRC in June 2003.
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EENEHNREEABER

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai, aged 63, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 6 May 2016. Mr. Leung
graduated from the lllinois Institute of Technology with a Master
Degree in Architecture in May 1981. Mr. Leung is a Registered
Architect in the United States and has worked for architectural firms in
both the United States and Hong Kong for 9 years before joining New
World Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 017), a company
specialised in property development projects in Hong Kong and the
PRC. He also worked at New World Project Management Limited from
May 1990 to May 2009 and was responsible for the management
and development of numerous property projects in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Southeast Asia and his last position was director and
general manager. He has been working at New Metro Consultants
Limited as a managing director since May 2009 and is responsible
for construction consultancy. From September 2013 to December
2014, he was chief operating officer of Bonds Group of Companies
Limited, a company mainly focused on real estate development and
investment, property management, hotel operations and financial
investments. Since January 2015, he has served as director of
planning and operations of Imperial Pacific International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1076).
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Mr. Lo Chi Leung, aged 34, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 6 May 2016. Mr. Lo has over 8 years of
experience in finance industry since July 2007. He was a graduate
engineer of China State Construction International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3311) from June 2006 to July 2007. After that, Mr. Lo
started his career in finance industry and worked for Dealogic Limited
as a research assistant and he was responsible for the maintenance
of a global mergers and acquisition transactions database from
July 2007 to February 2008. He then joined BMI Appraisals Limited
as business analyst and was responsible for business and financial
instruments valuation from February 2008 to November 2008. Mr. Lo
was employed by Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited, in which
he was responsible for mergers and acquisitions and resumption of
trading matters, for the period of November 2008 to May 2011 and
March 2012 to February 2013 and his last position was manager.
During May 2011 to March 2012 and March 2013 to December 2015,
Mr. Lo worked for TC Capital Asia Limited, in which he was responsible
for mergers and acquisitions, initial public offering matters and his last
position was associate director. From January 2016 to February 2016,
he served as managing director of Southwest Securities (HK) Capital
Limited, in which he was responsible for investment banking matters.
Since March 2016, he was associate director of Frontpage Capital
Limited, in which he was responsible for mergers and acquisitions,
initial public offering matters. Mr. Lo received degrees of Bachelor
of Engineering in civil engineering and Master of Finance from the
University of Hong Kong in December 2006 and November 2010
respectively. Mr. Lo is also a certified public accountant certified by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yeung Nai Cheong, aged 56, joined our Group in October 2004.
He serves as a project manager and Technical Director of our Group
and is responsible for project management and technical assurance.
He has over 25 years working experience in the construction industry.
From August 1986 to February 1987, he started his career as a
technician engineer at Enpack (H.K.)) Limited which was a ground
investigation contractor. He joined Vianini Lavori S.PA. which was
a construction contractor as a site engineer from August 1987 to
September 1988. From October 1989 to March 1991, he served as
assistant resident engineer at Binnie Consultants Limited which
was a construction consultancy company and was responsible for
supervision of three projects. He worked as an assistant engineer of
H.K. Cheng & Partners Limited which was a structural consultancy
company from April 1991 to March 1993. During April 1993 to March
2003, he was employed by Sunlink Limited which was a foundation
contractor as a project manager and was responsible for all project
management of construction works. During March 2003 to October
2004, he was served as project manager in Precast Piling and
Engineering Company Limited which was a piling contractor. He was
awarded the Higher Diploma in Civil Engineering (Geotechnology)
in November 1985 from Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic). He was also awarded the Hong
Kong Polytechnic’s Associateship award in Civil and Structural
Engineering in November 1986 from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (formerly known as Hong Kong Polytechnic) which is
deemed to be equivalent of an academic degree. He has completed
a 28-hour part-time construction safety supervisor course in October
1999 and a 30-hour part-time demolition of building course for
supervision/foremen in May 2000 which were both arranged by the
Construction Industry Training Authority.
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Mr. Ching Yat Cheung, aged 51, joined our Group in January 2005.
He serves as a project manager of our Group and is responsible for
project management and technical assurance. He has over 20 years
working experience in the construction industry. From July 1990 to
December 1993, he was an assistant engineer of Leighton Bruckner
Foundation Engineering Limited which was a foundation contractor.
He joined Geotechnics and Concrete Engineering (H.K.) Limited which
was a concrete engineering testing company as project engineer
from September 1997 to April 1999. During December 2001 to July
2003, he was employed by Chun Wo Foundations Limited which was
foundation contractor as site agent. He worked as project manager
and construction engineer of Huang Wan Construction Company
Limited which was a foundation contractor from September 2003
to December 2004. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in December 1990. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since
March 2001. He was also a registered professional engineer under
Engineers Registration Board of Hong Kong from February 2003 to
January 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Wai Hei, aged 37, joined our Group in November 2015
as chief financial officer and was later appointed as the company
secretary of our Group on 6 May 2016. Mr. Cheng is responsible for
the accounting and financial functions, internal control as well as the
company secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of
Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Charter Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Cheng has over 10 years of experience in accounting
and corporate governance.
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Directors’ Report
FERHS

The Board submits the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman lIslands and
domiciled in Hong Kong. The principal place of business of the
Company at Room 902-3, 9/F, Nan Fung Commercial Centre, 19 Lam
Lok Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
are principal engaged in foundation works and ancillary services,
general building works and sales of piles. The activities and particulars
of the Company's subsidiaries are shown under note 12 to the
Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group, with the description of the
principal risk and uncertainties, for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the likely future development, are included in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report on page
6 to 17, which forms part of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 62.0% (2016:
57.8%) of the Group's total revenue. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 19.4% (2016: 17.0%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 39.0%
(2016: 47.5%) of the Group's total subcontracting fee. The largest
subcontractor accounted for approximately 16.2% (2016: 23.1%) of
the Group's total subcontracting fee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 54.5% (2016:
20.2%). The largest supplier accounted for approximately 14.2% (2016:
11.5%) of the Group's total material costs.

At no time during the year have directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
had any interest in these major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. In preparation of
the Listing, the Group underwent the reorganisation pursuant to
which the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group on 17 July 2017. For details of the
Reorganisation, please refer to note 2(b) to the Financial Statements.

The Listing was completed on 17 July 2017.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years are included in the section
headed “Financial Summary” in this annual report on page 156, which
forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, whereby any individual, firm
or body corporate undertakes the management and administration of
the whole, or any substantial part of any business of the Company.
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SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in note 19 to the Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available
for distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$81.4 million.

Movements of the reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note
11 to the Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company passed
on 23 June 2017 for the purpose of recognising and motivating the
contributions that the eligible participants have made or may make to
the Group.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to (i)
an executive; (i) the director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group;
(iii) the consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group; (iv)
the person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional
or other services to any member of the Group; and (v) the close
associate of any of the foregoing persons, to subscribe for shares in
the Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.
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An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the acceptance letter of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HKS$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company within the period specified in the letter containing the
offer of the grant of the option. No offer shall be capable of or remain
open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years commencing on the
Listing Date.

The subscription price of a share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of ta share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date.

The share options granted are exercisable at any time during a
period as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of an offer for the grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination contained in the Scheme, and
provided that the Directors may determine the minimum period
for which an option has to be held or other restrictions before its
exercise.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of shares
of the Company in issue on the Listing Date (i.e. 51,200,000 shares).
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% in aggregate of the shares of
the Company in issue. The maximum number of shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date
of adoption.

No share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under
the Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual
report and the total number of shares available for grant under the
scheme was 51,200,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Lee Kai Lun (Chairman)
Kan Hou Sek, Jim

Lee Sai Man

Wong Siu Kwai

Kwong Po Lam

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fan Siu Kay
Leung William Wai Kai
Lo Chi Leung

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific item) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the Articles of Association,
Kan Hou Sek, Jim, Lee Sai Man and Wong Siu Kwai, shall retire from
office at the 2018 annual general meeting (the 2018 AGM"). All of the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the 2018 AGM are
set out in the circular to be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company together with this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 18 to 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2018
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses and
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in the execution
of his duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to such Director. There is appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group. Such provision was in force as of date of this
annual report and during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7

Annual Report 2017 i

EEREGREEABREE

EENSREBRABBNZHBHNAFRE S
EXH[EENSREEABREE] —#-

EERBEYN

BEBRR0FRREFAS EBEEETNES
HAEETMKE ARG BT AAERR—F
WL IEMBASAEEE CEAEEERIN) 2REE
#4ye

BriEER

ARBH B E 2 AR BB ST IE BRI
SEHERUITEHEBEMELRS - FTARR
AR DIAR A R B E A -

EEFHNRERRERX

EHERMEET BRESARRERBITEE
ERENRENEMEEN IR ETNRER
KRBE ERAARREEEPIELBE  HAHE
ERBFAEHREE FMEENRFFTEBE S
NEF - EZNAEEBREZFEENESE LG
BEERE - BB XN ARF R A AR E2017
FRAJNBETBRFERNEDR -

EENRS HREBRSHNESR

REREFRERERE AQF) EEERA
A MEARKERMB AR B LERNH
THRAEREaNIARS THHAK-



Directors’ Report
FERHS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests and short positions
of the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:-

(@) Long positions in the shares:

EERNESHES

RAFEREAE BEERNAQFREMBEEE (T&
RESKEEEN) MDD « BRI sk EREES
A @QRIEES M EIROEXVELE7 R8s 28R
MeARARRBRzEZ AR (BIEREE
FRBEEFIABEXHEESIRAEENER
KRB R(b)IRIEEF R E IS 352680
ZARFTIE S R M at ek SR IBE S L8 BIKY
B+ EMBITAERETES R HHEESTR
([HZ2E<FRI ] ) AR e AN R) R B 32 B B9 A 25 Kok
BT

@) RRHIzZHR

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of shareholders Nature of interest shares held  in the Company
EARRDT
R 3R &7 EHME FriEiR 6 &8 RiEzH DL
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan")' Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
(Note 1)
BEHEL ([HEL]) Rt EE#ES
(BEEET)
Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr. SM Lee")? Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
(Note 2)
FHREE([FHEEE]) REHEE#E R
(F&E2)
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai ("Mr. Wong")* Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
(Note 3)
BRERE ([EEE]) Rt EE#ER
(F&E3)
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Notes:

34 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 3 2 £ % B IR A /)

384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover
Assets Limited (“Condover Assets”). Dr. Kan beneficially owns
approximately 33.33% of issued share capital of Condover Assets.
Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of the SFO.

384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover Assets.
Mr. SM Lee beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued
share capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. SM Lee is
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by
Condover Assets for the purpose of the SFO.

384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover Assets.
Mr. Wong beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued
share capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed,
or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Condover
Assets for the purpose of the SFO.
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EESHE

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated (b)

corporation of the Company

REAQXFEBEEZEERZER

Name of associated Capacity/ Approximately
Name of director corporation nature of interest Total interests percentage
EENR HE LB AR 5/ E@EME P A BMAEDL
Dr. Kan Condover Assets Beneficial owner 384,000,000 75%
(Note 1)
HELT Condover Assets EREAA (Pi&ET)
Mr. SM Lee Condover Assets Beneficial owner 384,000,000 75%
(Note 2)
FREE Condover Assets ExnBEAA (PF7E2)
Mr. Wong Condover Assets Beneficial owner 384,000,000 75%
(Note 3)
"BEAE Condover Assets EnBEAA (PiF3E3)
Notes: BiEE
1. 384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover Assets. 1. 5%.384,000,0001% B 15 F Condover Assets® zs
Dr. Kan beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued share % o i 18 + & %5 ¥ B Condover Assets#Y
capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or 33.33%E BATIRAS - E it - R IR FE FH & H
taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Condover Assets S0 S8 AR & E /ER Condover
for the purpose of the SFO. Assets$5 7 HI A B 1) B 2w
2. 384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover Assets. 2. 5%.384,000,0001% B 15 F Condover Assets® zs
Mr. SM Lee beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued B o T R 50 & & 2 ¥ A Condover Assets
share capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. SM Lee is #93333% 2 FHITR A -H - IRIBEFHF K
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by BHEEKRA ZHREEHRBELEER
Condover Assets for the purpose of the SFO. Condover Assets 5 i) BT B Bk {7 1 #E B &
3. 384,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Condover Assets. 3. 5%.384,000,0001% B 15 F Condover Assets® zs

Mr. Wong beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued
share capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed,
or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Condover
Assets for the purpose of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

So far as was known to the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the following persons (not being Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

FTERRREBZNER

MREEMA RAFHRAH UTAL (LFEE
SIARARSTTEAR) R HARRBB D+ %
BHREREEREE S MR E R FEXVEH2
K B30 B Z G ARA R R R R EE 2 s
HARR AR RN ARABEBATEARHE
EAIK B AR ZIRRAE LIRE 2 EAR IR A
E{E10%3k A £ A B &k HE R

general meetings of any member of the Group:

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest sharesheld  in the Company
RREEEH SRR NE FisROBE HREZEI L
Condover Assets Beneficial interest 384,000,000 75%
Condover Assets B
Dr. Kan' Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
EEL Ry EE RS
Mr. SM Lee? Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
FHRES Rt EE#ER
Mr. Wong? Interest in a controlled corporation 384,000,000 75%
b Ry EE RS
Ms. Poon Man Yee* Interest of spouse 384,000,000 75%
AR L L 2
Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani® Interest of spouse 384,000,000 75%
Sheba Kishinchand DaswaniZ £ L e
Ms. Ho Lai Kuen® Interest of spouse 384,000,000 75%

AERL L

ALBiEam
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EESHE

Notes:

1. Dr. Kan beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued share capital
of Condover Assets. Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of
the SFO.

2. Mr. SM Lee beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued share
capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of
the SFO.

3. Mr. Wong beneficially owns approximately 33.33% of issued share
capital of Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose
of the SFO.

4. Ms. Pong Man Yee is the spouse of Dr. Kan. Accordingly Ms. Poon Man
Yee is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares in which Dr.
Kan is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

5. Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is the spouse of Mr. SM Lee.
Accordingly Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the shares in which Mr. SM Lee is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

6. Ms. Ho Lai Kuen is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Accordingly Ms. Ho Lai Kuen
is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares in which Mr. Wong
is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group.

B &L :

1. B 18 E 25 A Condover Assets#733.33% 2 21 TH%
o H L IBIBEFES KBRS HELHR A
& {ER Condover Assetst® A &) FT A I (5 # A 1

250

2. A R % 4 B 25 A Condover Assets#733.33% 0, %%
TTIRAR - Eit  RIBEF SR EKRY FHREE
18 A E 1B Condover Assetsi A K B A I (D
FHEER -

3. =LA B 25 A Condover Assets#733.33% 2 31 TH%
o H L BIBEFES REERY BREFR AN
& {ER Condover Assetst® A &) FT A I (5 i A 1

250

4. FBHRLTABE LRS- Bt REER L
BiRP BRARLLREAREEREELER
EMOMAER DR EERER -

5. Sheba Kishinchand DaswaniZz & /& 2=t R 5¢ 4 B9 B
18 At - IRIEFEH K EIEEHI - Sheba Kishinchand
DaswaniZ T# iR A EFR Tt REE B s
WATERNTPERER-

6. fBRBRETAELLEMEMS-Flt REERKLY
BiEP MEBLXLIREAREERELLEESR
EAMAER DR EE R -

B EXPIRBEESN RAFHRAY EFWAHE
BEMEMAL (LIFEE) R SRR I
BEEIBE SR RIEESF MAE R EXVEEE
2R B3 B 2 SRR AN B Ko B SR PR B 2 1
BmIRE RN EENARABEBATERE
EERKE AR ZIRRAEG LREZ EAERIK
AEE10% A EP A Bk B -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
or their associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing to 31 December 2017, neither did
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase, sell or redeem any
of the Company’s listed securities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 23 to
the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report, none of
the related party transactions constitute a connected transaction (as
defined in the Listing Rules) that is required to be disclosed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into certain agreements with the Company’s
connected persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) constitute connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2017 and that they were entered into:

1. in the ordinary course of the business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. in accordance with the relevant written agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has confirmed to the Board in writing that for the year
ended 31 December 2017, the continuing connected transactions,

which were entered into:

1. have obtained the approval of the Board;

2. have been in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group
for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group;

3. have been in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant announced cap amounts for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Details of the connected and continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Connected Transactions — Purchase of materials from GZYC

Connected person

GZYC is a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Dr. Kan, Poon
Man Yee (Dr. Kan's spouse) on behalf of Dr. Kan, Mr. SM Lee and Mr.
Wong, and is therefore an associate of Dr. Kan, Mr. SM Lee and Mr.
Wong and a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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Description of the transactions
Existing PHC Pile Purchase Agreement

On 1 March 2017, 24 June 2017 and 15 November 2017, WWW
Materials entered into a purchase agreement, a supplemental
purchase agreement and second supplemental purchase agreement,
respectively, with GZYC (collectively, the “Existing PHC Piles Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which WWW Materials has agreed to make
a one-off purchase of a total of 164,000 meters of PHC Piles of four
different specifications and 4,500 units of steel cross shoes from GZYC.

New PHC Pile Purchase Agreement

On 15 November 2017 and 8 December 2017, WWW Materials
entered into a purchase agreement and a supplemental purchase
agreement, respectively, with GZYC (collectively, the “New PHC
Piles Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which WWW Materials has
conditionally agreed to make a one-off purchase of a total of 106,000
meters of PHC Piles of four different specifications and 3,600 units of
steel cross shoes from GZYC.

On 29 December 2017, the Company obtained independent
shareholders’ approval at the extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the total purchase from
GZYC amounted to approximately HK$41.6 million.

Details of the above-mentioned transactions were disclosed in the
prospectus dated 30 June 2017; announcements dated 15 November
2017 and 8 December 2017; and circular dated 12 December 2017 of
the Company.

Exempt continuing connected transaction - Provision of
consultancy services by Wong & Cheng Consulting Engineers
Limited (“Wong & Cheng”)

Connected person

Wong & Cheng is owned by Mr. Kwong Po Lam (“Mr. Kwong"), the
executive Director of the Company, as to approximately 32% and by
an independent third party as to 68%. Wong & Cheng is an associate
of Mr. Kwong, and is therefore a connected person of the company
under Listing Rules.
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Description of the transaction

The Company engaged Wong & Cheng for the provision of
consultancy services relating to submission of works such as
piling foundation, ELS and hoarding amendment to the relevant
government departments, including the Buildings Department
for approval on an ad-hoc basic ("W&C Consultancy Services”).
On 23 June 2017, Win Win Way Construction Co., Limited ("WWW
Construction”), the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a framework consultancy agreement (the "W&C
Framework Consultancy Agreement”) with Wong & Cheng pursuant
to which Wong & Cheng shall provide W&C Consultancy Services to
the WWW Construction from time to time.

Listing Rules implications

Since each of the relevant percentage ratio under the Listing Rules
in respect of the total annual consideration of the transactions under
the W&C Framework Consultancy Agreement is expected to be less
than 5% and the total annual consideration is expected to be less
than HKS$3 million, the transaction constitutes de minimis transaction
under Rule 14A.76 (1) which is fully exempt from the shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the total consultancy fee
paid to Wong & Cheng amounted to approximately HK$2.2 million.

Details of the above-mentioned transaction was disclosed in the
prospectus dated 30 June 2017 of the Company.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions - Provision
of consultancy services by Paul Tong & Associates Consulting
Engineers Limited (“Paul Tong”)

Connected person

Paul Tong is a Hong Kong incorporated private company principal
engaged in the provision of general construction consulting services
and certification of piles manufactured by GZYC. It is held as to
75% by Dr. Kan and as to 25% by Mr. Yeung Nai Cheong, a senior
management of the Company, and is therefore an associate of Dr. Kan
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Paul
Tong obtained the Building Department’s approval for the use of PHC
Piles in 2006 subject to certain conditions and requirements being
met, rendering Paul Tong's certification necessary for use of the PHC
Piles in Hong Kong.
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Description of the transactions
2017 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement

On 2 May 2017, WWW Materials entered into a consultancy
agreement (the “2017 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement”)
with Paul Tong pursuant to which Paul Tong will provide PHC Piles
Consultancy Services to the Group from time to time during the term
of that agreement.

2018 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement

On 15 November 2017, WWW Materials entered into a consultancy
agreement (the “2018 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement”)
with Paul Tong pursuant to which Paul Tong will provide PHC Piles
Consultancy Services to the Group from time to time during the term
of that agreement.

Listing Rules implications

As Paul Tong is a connected person of the company and in light of
the view of the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) as described below, the transactions as contemplated
under the 2017 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement and
the 2018 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company and are subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements,
but are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The transaction amounts and the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2017 under the 2017 Paul Tong Framework Consultancy
Agreement were as follows:

20177F E EBIERZ R BRIE NEZ=2017F128
JBLEFENRSEERFE FREHWT

Transaction

amount for Annual Cap for

the year ended the year ended

31 December 2017 31 December 2017

BZE2017F BZE2017F

12A31ALEFEN 12A3NBLFED

REEH FELR

Agreement HK$'000 HK$'000

th % T TAET
2017 Paul Tong Framework 20175 B EBERE AT

Consultancy Agreement 6,191 8,200

Details of the above-mentioned transactions were disclosed in
the prospectus dated 30 June 2017 and announcements dated 15
November 2017 of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 45 to 60.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed
by the Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate
in any other pension schemes during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in
securities of the Company by Directors. Upon specific enquires of all
the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

On 25 October 2017, Win Win Way Construction Co., Limited ("WWW
Construction”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) for a
banking facilities up to HK$60 million with a bank (the “Lender”). If
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim, Mr. Lee Sai Man and Mr. Wong Siu Kwai hold
less than 51% interests in the Company, then the Lender is entitled
to request immediate repayment of any amount owing or payable by
WWW Construction.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or the Group after 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been audited by KPMG, who will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the 2018 AGM.

By order of the Board

Lee Kai Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report of
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed to achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to
attain better results and improve its corporate image with effective
corporate governance procedures.

Since Listing, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had
adopted, applied and complied with code provisions as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the following
deviation.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company did not officially have chief
executive. The role and function of chief executive have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board
believes that the present arrangement is adequate to ensure
an effective management and control of the Group's business
operations. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's structure as business continues to grow and develop in order
to assess whether any changes, including the appointment of chief
executive officer, is necessary.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules upon the Listing. All
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report in response to the specific
enquiry made by the Company.

The Board has established written guidelines no less exacting than
the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company as required under the CG Code.
No incident of non-compliance of such guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company since the Listing.
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THE BOARD

The Board acts in good faith, with due diligence and care, to
discharge its duties concerning the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The primary role of the Board is protect
and entrance long term shareholders’ value; it also oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance of
the Group to ensure that good corporate governance policies and
practices are implemented within the Group. The management is
responsible for the execution of the strategies in the Group's daily
operations and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report is set out below:

Executive Director

Lee Kai Lun (Chairman)
Kan Hou Sek, Jim
Kwong Po Lam

Lee Sai Man

Wong Siu Kwai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fan Siu Kay
Leung William Wai Kai
Lo Chi Leung

The biographies of the Directors during the year and up to the date
of this annual report and the relationships among them are set out
in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 18 to 26 of this annual report. The executive Directors
bring a good balance of skills and experience to the Company. The
independent non-executive Directors provide their independent
judgement on the development, performance and risk management
of the Group. The Directors are fully aware that they individually and
collectively accountable to shareholders.
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The executive Directors have entered into employment contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed on a specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles of
association of the company (the “Articles of Association”) provide
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
the annual general meeting at least once every three years. At each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire shall retire from office by rotation and be eligible for re-
election by the shareholders.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Since the Listing Date, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to
time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communication.
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should 1RIEMCZEEATAZTRABEXEAIE EFE
meet reqularly and board meetings should be held at least four times ~ EFFERITHRINATHESTS S % -
a year.

The attendance of the respective Directors to the Board Meeting ®BEEB FHELMEEAFREHIEFEESS
since the Listing and up to the date of this annual report are set out &% 2B REHFI 0T

below:
Attendance/Number of
meeting between
the Listing Date and
the date of this
annual report
BLWHHBHERER
AHIRHE,
BITERHE
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Lee Kai Lun RSB 5 A 5/5
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim EEHIELT 5/5
Mr. Kwong Po Lam BB AR MR ST £ 5/5
Mr. Lee Sai Man it REE 5/5
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai ERESLE 5/5
Independent Non-Executive Director BYKBITES
Mr. Fan Siu Kay BRI AR 5/5
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai RIBELAE 5/5
Mr. Lo Chi Leung EEREE 5/5

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEEEEXRRE
OF DIRECTORS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual B ETHEZEAFRBHE A ESERE
report, all Directors confirmed to comply with the provision of the (G ~ Z— HETABIFEEEEARENCEEATAIE
Code in relation to continuous professional development. In doing X - Allt EEC2EEBANRER EEBK
5o, the Directors have undertaken various forms of activities relevant  REEEMZSEEH - AQRFIR ETAIG A2 EE
to the Company’s business, Directors' duties and responsibilities.  FHRITIFF MFEREFHESTHBHERETH
The Company held a training for all Directors to provide them with 07

knowledge on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors before

Listing.
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The record of continuous professional development relating to
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have

BELtMEHEEEAFRANHE EFEER
MERESREUANEEMEBEROSERE

been received by the Directors for the period from the Listing Date  Z¥R S s%BEFE a0 ¢
and up to the date of this annual report are summarised as follows:

Type of Training™°®

3T 5|38 By =)

Executive Director BITES
Mr. Lee Kai Lun 7 R BB 4 A B
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim HEHB L B
Mr. Kwong Po Lam BB RS £ B
Mr. Lee Sai Man FHRESE B
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai ERELE B
Independent Non-Executive Director BYFHITES
Mr. Fan Siu Kay BRRE S B
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai RIBESLAE B
Mr. Lo Chi Leung EERLE A B
Note: P o
Type of Training EINEH

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,  A:

seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and B:

relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, namely the
Audit committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which clearly outline the committees’
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Board
committees during the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Lo Chi Leung (Chairman)
Fan Siu Kay
Leung William Wai Kai

Remuneration Committee

Fan Siu Kay (Chairman)
Lee Kai Lun
Leung William Wai Kai

Nomination Committee

Lee Kai Lun (Chairman)
Kan Hou Sek, Jim

Fan Siu Kay

Leung William Wai Kai
Lo Chi Leung

Board committee are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Company has set up the Audit Committee on 23 June 2017 with
written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The attendance of the respective members to the Audit Committee
Meeting since the Listing and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

BEREES

KABBER2017F6ABBKYBREE S j’UE
BN EE AT MEIERG] L S A BEEE
%’f?é,\EMEgﬁifﬁTﬁﬁjJi%A%BﬁEﬂ%ﬁ
B R EBRZF - RS G MR EIE RS L&
BERZEINEZEE URZHERAREE S
AN E) B RS B R - A BB ) ok B b 5 T P) g R
MERITRIRLET-

im HEEARFRAH L
B NT :

ND]}

Attendance/Number of
meeting between

the Listing Date and
the date of this

annual report

BT HBMERER

A LR

ETERHE

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (Chairman) BEERKE (F/E) 4/4
Mr. Fan Siu Kay BIEE R E 4/4
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai RIEEL A 4/4

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors on 13 December
2017 and 27 March 2018 without the presence of the executive
Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee on 23
June 2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting
terms those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining/reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration.

The Remuneration committee held one meeting on 27 March 2018 to
review and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
are set out in the sections headed "Directors’ Remuneration” and
“Remuneration of the Senior Management” in this annual report.

yMEES

KABBER2017F6ABBEBKRYIFMEE S Wik
TNERTEEATRIMEIERET L ERBESE -
FHNEZE eI ERECREET, BT SRTES
RLERERABZTNGEE 2BEZRARE
BENTFWBREREBYR EMSERES2R
HEZ URRIEREFHTIHEFHNBR R
BELBREESHEMMABHEASR2HEETE
B &5 -

FMEZ B EMN2018F3A27H BT —REH - g
AARBHHEERERE ATEERSRER
ABMFNFEREMEBER Xl L EIR
MESFSRHEZ-

EENEREEASNEHFNGTEABHNAFR
[EX2HM M [GREEABHM] 8-

Attendance/Number of
meeting between

the Listing Date and
the date of this

annual report

BLTHHERER

AR

BITEREE

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (Chairman) BRESE (FE) /1
Mr. Lee Kai Lun I BB 4 A 11
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai RIBELAE 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 23 June
2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company's board diversity policy,
including but not limited to skills, industry and regional experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities etc. In forming its
perspective on diversity, the Company will also take into account
factors based on its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree
on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting on 27 March 2018 to
review the composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring directors standing election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 12 June 2018.
The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

REZEEGN2018E3F27B BT — R E 5 UE
MESe ZAXNUARBYIFRITES 2B 15
WEENENR2018F6 128 BT 2 EERRBSE
Ae tBERBTZETEENER - IRREES
REEESEZ UL HCHBEE T

Attendance/Number of
meeting between

the Listing Date and
the date of this

annual report

BLWHHBHERER

AHIRHE,

BITERHE

Mr. Lee Kai Lun (Chairman) M (L) N1
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim BHEHB L 1/1
Mr. Fan Siu Kay BRARE g 1
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai RIBELAE 1/1
Mr. Lo Chi Leung EERLE 1/1

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code by Directors and
relevant employees, and the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the company's strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal risks
are properly managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems.
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The Group has maintained internal control guidance and procedures
on the Group's operational cycles relating to revenue, purchase and
expenditure, inventory and human resources etc, to ensure proper
accounting records and kept so that reliable financial reporting can
be provided, the effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be
achieved, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also shaped
the control environment in which and how the Group operates,
including the budgeting controls, investment decision making, risk
assessment and practices of corporate governance. These systems are
designed to provide reasonable protection against errors, losses and
fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate measures
to perform the internal audit function at different aspects of the
Group.

The Company has engaged CT Partners Consultants Limited to
conduct a review on the effectiveness of the internal controls of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. The review covered
certain operational procedures and included recommendations
for improving and strengthening the internal control system. No
significant area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance, control and risk management of the Group has been
identified. The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group and is satisfied that the
Group has complied with the Code in respect of internal control from
the date of Listing up to the date of this annual report.

Regular meetings were held between the executive Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency in the use of the
Group's resources in comparison to the budgets, and the operational
matters to ensure the Group has complied with the regulations
that have material impact to the Group's business. The aim is to
enhance the communication and accountability of the Directors and
management so that significant strategic, financial, operational and
compliance risks or potential deviations are timely identified and
dealt with in proper manner, which significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention.

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7
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With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Group's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquires. While
any potential inside information will be escalated to the executive
meetings or the Board via the established reporting channels, the
Directors will assess and determine if the inside information of the
Group exist where timely disclosure is required to be made by way of
an announcement published on the Stock Exchange website. Control
procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. In addition, the Directors' remuneration is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company annually. Details of
the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the Financial
Statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration of
senior management is listed below by band:

Band of remuneration

B < &8 E

Eﬁ NEREFABRBERE ARFEHERER
RAAAKREES BB "SREEAENEEH
1%55%)“?@{%” EM ERESRERDESH
RE—RIES -ERBEEARBEESSEBTE
MEBEHRRELBATERNEFTS EF NG
LREEARRREFEARHELE MARRER
BRI EERASIERRRE - BRREFLE
EEl UWRRBEZEEBERMERARTHES -

EE M

EEMeNKBEFNRE - TE&%%EEL‘A&$
Elﬁﬁ%%%i o EEH MR AR RFMNE

SEFRIT -EFHFNFE %kﬁéé!ﬁ%#&%w
EI8°

REZE2017F12A31BILEE -
SEHEHFHIIMT

BARETEA B H B

Number of Person

AR

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remunerations paid
or payable to KPMG in respect of its audit services and non-audit
services are HK$2,280,000 and HK$275,000. The non-audit services
mainly include the service fee for the reporting on continuing
connected transactions and advisory service in relation to
environment, social and governance reporting. The Audit Committee
was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2017 did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. In
preparing the Financial Statements which give a true and fair view, it
is fundamental that the appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The statement of the external auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the Financial
Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages
61 to 69 of this annual report. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company's company secretary, Mr. Cheng Wai Hei, coordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and is the primary contact
person within the Company for all matters relating to the duties and
responsibilities of the company secretary. All Directors have access to
company secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. During the year ended 31
December 2017, he had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
For details of his biography, please refer to the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We seriously take care of the shareholders’ interest to ensure that they
are treated fairly and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights
effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the Articles of Association
and are also encouraged to participate in the Company’s general
meetings or appoint proxies to attend meetings may request the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and put forward
proposals. Such requisition should be made in writing to the Board
or the company secretary for such purpose and should specify the
objects of the meeting.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles of Association and the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make
written requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

In case a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited together
with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to the company
secretary at the Company principal place of business (Room 902-3,
9/F, Nam Fung commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong) or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company. The notice should be given at least
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group's information to its shareholders and
the market. The annual shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. At the annual
general meeting of the Company, the Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquires. In addition, the Company’s website (http://www.winwinway.
com.hk) contains extensive company information which is easily
accessible.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
since Listing Date. An up-to-date version of the Company
memorandum and articles of association is available on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may put to the Board through the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 902-3, 9/F, Nam Fung
commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (email: info@winwinway.com.hk).
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR L EiE S

KpME!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win Win
Way Construction Holdings Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 70 to 155 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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AR e 5

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FARETER

ARBAFHEERERMNERHE  BRHK
PMBEF ARGV BRRESEENEH %
FERCHERMBAEOSEEMBHRRILAER
REEE MEMATERZSFEREFREER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Contract accounting estimates

RS fE

Refer to accounting policies 2(i) and 2(q)(i) and notes 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
BRR R KR FE20)ERB2q)0)E - AR A& EHAT 4@ 05

The Key Audit Matter
REEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREES R

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services and general building works in
Hong Kong and Saipan totalling HK$754 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

REBZE2017F12A31RIEFE: EXEERBTERE
HREMETREREERBAR —BREETREFS =
754 BB TT e

Contract revenue and profit are recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of the estimated total revenue for
the contracts entered into by the Group that have been
performed to date.
BRRRLHENERATKEDLEER EFE2EH
ZEARERH BEEEMILAOTE KD HET
WaaEN B DLt E -
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Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting estimates
included the following:

BT Ea NG HEMETNENEFEENTE
15 -

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the contract
revenue and profit recognition processes;

FPRE A Ak ER Ko N ERAR Fr T B e A = 2 A B
E ARG ITIB R SOEER R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BHEFHER

BEREETEIE (8)

Refer to accounting policies 2(ij) and 2(g)(i) and notes 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
BRI E R E20)ERE2q))E - U RS BFHN F46) K15

The Key Audit Matter
BAREITEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EREESE

Management reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs and variation orders for each
construction contract by comparing the most current
budgeted amounts with corresponding actual amounts as
the contract work progresses.

BEEANIERF EEEAANESIRRBESEK
HENERSE FRAREITRTHBRESONRES
B BHRARERIES PIEL e fhaT -

The recognition of revenue and profit therefore relies
on management’s estimate of the final outcome of
each contract, which involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting the costs
to complete a contract, in valuing contract variations, claims
and liquidated and ascertained damages and in assessing
the ability of the Group to deliver services according to the
agreed timetable.

Bt mREEMORNRREKBEEREEHSNH SRR
BRELMERT  BERPREEBBIEHERAE L
RIBTER —BEHHRA  EFERAL BREEE
RETHEERE AKRTE E£ERRHTERERE
AR 7% &Y BE

discussing with management the performance of
contracts in progress during the year, on a sample basis,
and challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecasts for contract revenue and
contract costs, including estimated costs to completion,
the recognition of variation orders, the adequacy
of contingency provisions and the assessment of
potential liquidated and ascertained damages for
contracts which were behind schedule, by obtaining
and evaluating relevant information in connection the
assumptions adopted, including contract agreements
and subcontracts, correspondence with customers
regarding contract variations and claims and by
considering historical outcomes for similar contracts
and industry norms;

NS BERENRFAEESONKRI
WiEBEE MR ET R A RERE EMEEER
(BEAABERSBEH URREFTEHARBEER
HEFHERER) URZRUAEELUEHNE
RRATEER - HIRAE DMz R KB FTER
MEVEZ A KRR (BEEBGTRAEET A
FHECHER KRBEEBERET A AR ME
BRENANNBEREE M ETEERE) ZLE
5

obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total estimated
costs to completion for all contracts in progress during
the year and comparing, on a sample basis, actual costs
incurred to the reporting date and future cost estimates
with agreements, certifications or correspondence with
subcontractors and suppliers and other documentation
referred to by management in its assessment of the
estimated costs to completion;
BISFAMBEZA NG TR ANARNFHAD
- WS B E RS B AT E A R BERBCR K&
R AR B M EE TR L5
BRARERERE R EREN HET TR EERA
R P2 E 80 2 SR EL B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Contract accounting estimates

o) EIRCE

BEEETEIE (&)

Refer to accounting policies 2(i) and 2(q)(i) and notes 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
BRMEFHEE20)ERE2Q))E  URFE I 40 %15

The Key Audit Matter
B ETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EiREESE

We identified contract accounting estimates as a key audit
matter because the estimation of the total contract revenue
and total costs to complete contracts is inherently subjective
and requires significant management judgement and
estimation and because errors in the forecast of contract
revenue and contract costs could result in a material variance
in the amount of profit or loss recognised from contracts to
date and, therefore, in the current period.

BB OGHEERBRETFRE DARLERS
AW R TR & KB SRR AR S R R R F R &
BEEREFEZELREHE R ARAREHELH
Wtk & KRS 00 85 3R AT G BUR s A Bt & A P i
REVEF S EIESEHRERER M2 N8
R EEREAER
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for all projects in progress at the reporting date,
challenging the assumptions and critical judgements
made by management which impacted their
estimations of the liquidated and ascertained
damages assessments by comparing the key terms
and conditions in the assessments with contract
agreements with customers and by comparing the
estimated contract completion time with the Group's
updated progress report or correspondence from
customers;
MEmERMNAAEZEAME RS BERT
fEP e E 2R E BMNE PRI LA O
TELLE - ARBGEFAE N TKEEE SEEEN &K
MEEREXNTFELNEGEIELE HEEEM
ELH T EEE L ETEERENRAETTENR
RN AR AR E R

recalculating the percentage of contract revenue
recognised for contracts in progress during the year, on
a sample basis, with reference to the estimated total
contract revenue and certifications from the surveyors
appointed by the customers or payment applications
from the in-house surveyor;
HMEENFERFAEEZANMERNEONRER
D ERELERFPMEBRAZMNMGEE 0N
T AR OB H o) B A S | A9 BRI = A A A< B R
B

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe the
progress of individual contracts, discussing with site
personnel the status of each project and evaluating
whether the project progress was consistent with the
agreed timetable and the Group's financial accounting
records;
HMECETEMRE  UBIRERN S OEE - Hip
BABRSEEORR URTEEBEERS
HipFENRFRRE ERENPMBECE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Contract accounting estimates

aHEHEE

FEEETEIE (8)

Refer to accounting policies 2(i) and 2(g)(i) and notes 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
BRI ST B EE20)ERE2Q))E  URFEEIHRI E40) K15 o

The Key Audit Matter
E L ]

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EitREESE

performing a retrospective review of contracts
completed during the current year by comparing the
final outcome of the contracts with previous estimates
made for those contracts to assess the reliability of the
management’s forecasting process; and
HARFEANTHOEAETENER  HERKE
W RBERBERZES OMELEEHETT
L8 DARHEERERAR P EE &

inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key terms
and conditions, including the contracting parties,
the contract period, the contract sum, the scope of
work, the methodology for calculating liquidated and
ascertained damages, and evaluating whether these
key terms and conditions had been appropriately
reflected in the total estimated revenue and costs
to complete in the forecast of the outcome of the
contracts.

MERERETF RO BB LA M LB
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
AR L EiE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BN Iz AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR L e S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

4= AR

H A2 E IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L FE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAFTTFII7R)

1R

2017 2016
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 F T Tt
Revenue Wz 4 821,907 715,107
Direct costs HERAK (707,997) (588,573)
Gross profit EF 113,910 126,534
Other income HAapg A 5 301 1,143
General and administrative expenses — R RITHAX (81,365) (70,032)
Profit from operations RERF 32,846 57,645
Finance costs BB RN 6(a) (1,640) (2,358)
Profit before taxation BR B A R 6 31,206 55,287
Income tax Fri5 7(@) (8,319) (13,150)
Profit for the year F R 22,887 42,137
Other comprehensive income FRHEMZEKER
for the year
Item that may be reclassified E g B 7 E
subsequently to profit or loss: BmmEE .
Exchange difference on translation of &GN B A
financial statements of ﬂﬁf%#ﬁi%ﬁ'\][ﬁ%%ﬁ
overseas subsidiaries (1) 2
Profit and total comprehensive FERBENR
income for the year THNEAE 22,886 42,139
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) &R 2% (7&4l) 10
Basic and diluted AR E#E 5.17 10.97
The notes on pages 75 to 155 form part of these financial statements.  Z575Z2 1558 WM = AL S MR — 3o -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre MR

As at 31 December 2017 720174128318

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TI7R)

2017 2016
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T SETE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB k& ﬁ 11 5,267 16,473
Deposits and prepayments Be RIERNT 13 - 1,021
Deferred tax assets ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 7(0) 648 =
. _ I 5915 17494
Current assets REBEE
Gross amounts due from customers VW%IE SR TEFRT 15
for contract work e 215,927 151,240
Trade and other receivables %%&ﬁmrﬂm 13 171,774 150,662
Cash and bank balances Be MIB1T4HE 14(a) 56,051 19,501
443,752 321,403
Current liabilities RBEE
Gross amounts due to customers ENEFPAXITIENIE 15
for contract work 4B =E 11,597 7177
Trade and other payables %%&ﬁm%ﬁﬁlﬁ 16 130,709 150,208
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1T B g 23(b) 4,345 -
Obligations under finance leases b &R E 7%3% 17 6,674 7,823
Bank loans |ITER 18 50,996 29,033
Tax payable JE @718 7(c) 3,310 9453
e 0761 203604
Net current assets REBEEFE 236,121 117,709
Total assets less current liabilities ~~ #EERR®HEEH/ 242036 135203
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Obligations under finance leases BMEHEAE 17 2,461 9,135
Deferred tax liabilities 4 BEBEAGE Q. . 204
e _ 2461 9339 _
NET ASSETS EEFE 239,575 125,864
Annual Report 2017 4% Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 #3252 i AR A &

71



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (onsined

sre MIBAINAR @

As at 31 December 2017 120174128318

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAFTTFII7R)

2017 2016
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T Tt

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRR#E 19

Share capital [ 19(0) 5,120 234

Reserves 1 234,455 125,630

TOTAL EQUITY R 239,575 125,864

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2018.

Lee Kai Lun
F) Bk
Director

EF

The notes on pages 75 to 155 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= N\ /424
/ ~ II\EIII\
N =~

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12A31 B ILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

Share Share Other  Exchange Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits equity
kx  ROBE HtEE EXRE REEN  EREH
Note $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Mz T T T i T T
At 1 January 2016 R2016F181H = = 41,656 (am 185,490 227,135
Changes in equity for 2016: 20165 EHET
Capital injection TE 468 - - - 468
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 42137 4137
Other comprehensive income EREMEAEKE
for the year - - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income ERNEEANEAE
for the year - - - 2 42,137 42,139
Dividend declared EERRE 19(0) - - - - (143644)  (143,644)
Reorganisation X (234) - - - - (234)
At 31 December 2016 R20165128318 234 - 41656 6 83983 125864
At 1 January 2017 R2017F181H 234 - 41,656 9) 83,983 125,864
Changes in equity for 2017: 0175 BH2T
Profit for the year ERaTl - - - - 22,887 22,887
Other comprehensive income EREMZEKE
for the year - = = (1) = (1)
Total comprehensive income ERNEENEAE
for the year - - - (1) 22,887 22,886
Issuance of new shares under REEAETHRSG 19000
the reorganisation 234 - - - - 234
Reorganisation X 19(c)(iii) (234) - - - - (234)
Issuance of new shares under REERRREE 19(c)(iv)
the Initial Public Offering (PO"), ([BERAMBE])
net of issuing expenses IR
MR BT 1,280 89,545 - - - 90,825
Capitalisation issue BALET 19(0)W) 3,606 (3,606) - = - -
At31 December 2017 R20178128318 5120 85939 41656 (10) 106870 2395575

The notes on pages 75 to 155 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

relREemER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A318 L FE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZETTSIR)

2017 2016
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 F T Tt

Cash (used in)/generated from e (A FBRE 140

operations (58,261) 41,335
Tax paid ETHIR (15,314) (14,012)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEES (FFA)

operating activities FERESFERE (73,575) 27,323
Investing activities REEH
Increase in pledged bank deposits B ERITEFE (36,315) =
Payment for the purchase of property, ~ B E¥Z - BE MR E 2

plant and equipment A (976) (1,236)
Deposits for the purchase of property, ~ BE®H - BERZEZ

plant and equipment funded Bi%E - 605
Decrease in amounts due from JE MK e Bt 75 IR R

related parties - 73,382
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTA)

investing activities FMIBREFE (37,291) 72,751
Financing activities RIESEE
Payment of listing expenses IHAZZHIE (11,479) (5,943)
Proceeds from capital injection A B FTSRIA - 468
Distributions to Controlling Shareholders 7 2 #H % ) #2¢ B A% 51

upon reorganisation 7 ik - (234)
Dividend paid BRI E - (36,388)
Capital element of finance lease ENmERERS 2

rentals paid BRI (7,823) (8,566)
Interest element of finance lease ENBMEEEES 2

rentals paid FEE D (636) (1,024)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRITER PSR 43,996 14,744
Repayments of bank loans BEBIETER (22,033) (37,898)
Proceeds from issuance of BATHRD 2

new shares FiS3R1E 110,080 -
Interest paid EFE (1,004) (1334)
Decrease in amounts due to JE 1~ B e 75 SRR

related parties - (18,202)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mMEFEE

financing activities (R BREZRE 111,101 (94,377)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEZEY

equivalents R EE 235 5,697
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRBE2EEY

the beginning of the year 19,501 13,804
Cash and cash equivalents at FREeMBESZEEY 140

the end of the year 19,736 19,501

The notes on pages 75 to 155 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of construction and
related services, which mainly included foundation works
and ancillary services and general building works, and sales
of piles. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5 October 2015 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17
July 2017 (the “Listing”).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

76 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 s 2 £+ % B IR A /)

Basis of preparation and presentation

These consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 23
June 2017 (the “Reorganisation”), the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2017 (the
"Prospectus”).

The Group's businesses were conducted principally
through Win Win Way Construction Co., Limited
("WWWC"), Smart City Engineering Limited (“SCE"),
Win Win Way Materials Supply Limited ("WWWM") and
Win Win Way Construction Co., (Saipan) Inc. ("WWWC
(Saipan)”). Prior to the Reorganisation, WWWC and
WWWM were wholly-owned by Win Win Way Holdings
Limited ("WWWH") and WWWC (Saipan) was wholly-
owned by Moral Grace Investment Limited ("MGIL").
WWWH and SCE were owned as to 33.33% by Mr. Kan
Hou Sek, Jim (“Mr. Kan"), 33.33% by Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr.
Lee"”) and 33.33% by Mr. Wong Siu Kwai ("Mr. Wong")
and MGIL was held by Cheung Yuk Kwan on trust which
was owned as to 33.33% by Mr. Kan, 33.33% by Mr. Lee
and 33.33% by Mr. Wong. Mr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Mr. Wong
are collectively the “Controlling Shareholders” and were
acting in concert during the current and prior periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and presentation (continued)

The companies that took part in the Reorganisation
were controlled by the Controlling Shareholders before
and after the Reorganisation. As the control is not
transitory and, consequently, there was a continuation
of risks and benefits to the Controlling Shareholders, the
Reorganisation is considered to be a restructuring of
entities under common control. The financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been
prepared using the merger basis of accounting as if the
Group has always been in existence. The net assets of
the companies taking part in the Reorganisation are
combined using the book values from the Controlling
Shareholders' perspective.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure has
been included in note 14(c) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS
7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financial activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ¥R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

78 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 s 2 £+ % B IR A /)

Basis of measurement and use of estimates and
judgements

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

80 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(h)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Furniture and fixtures 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Plant and machinery 310 4 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7T3I7R)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEFBR (8
(continued)
(g) Leased assets (90 HEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series WAKBEEFA BRXHFHIA—F
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group X BEHEAKNZHRE@REE
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use REZEEERHEFHRNEHA®E:
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time PARES 508, — RO 50 - BIRZIB e HE
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such DESBEE—IAMEE - BEET LED
a determination is made based on an evaluation of N 2B BEERNR BE%E
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of MTmZELHEEHEEHENEZE
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. e
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) EBEEXEFHEEEZSHE
Assets that are held by the Group under leases HRAEBENHERBNEE
which transfer to the Group substantially all the WG ET AR BARE Rk & E
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as REBREAEE ABEEED
being held under finance leases. Leases which BAUREMHERA - Wi &
do not transfer substantially all the risks and Fir B # 2 18 K& o |2 b 2 [B] 3
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as HREREE Ao RKEEHE
operating leases. go
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 3 2 £ % B IR A /)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(h).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7T3I7R)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,

market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

84 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A IT3I7R)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEREGFHBXK &)
(continued)
(h)  Impairment of assets (continued) (hy EBEBMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EtZERE (&)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable EREEANETR NEBRBG
amount is estimated. FFEEMNFIEISEE -

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

U]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(g)(i). When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i

88 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7

Construction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statements of financial position as the “Gross amounts
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset)
or the “Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not
yet paid by the customer are included under “Trade and
other receivables”. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included under “Trade and other
payables”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

M

(m)

(n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

90 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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2.

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7]

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR ERR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZETTHIR)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i)  Construction contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the gross
billing value of contracting work can be measured
reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is
established according to the progress certificate
(by reference to the amount of completed works
confirmed by surveyor) issued by the customers or
the progress payment application (by reference to
the amount of completed works confirmed by in-
house surveyor) submitted to the customers.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that they have been agreed with
the customer or the outcome of which can be
estimated reliably by management and are capable
of being reliably measured.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RFRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

94 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7]

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Rental income from lease of machinery

Rental income receivable from lease of machinery
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Annual Report 2017 3k

2.

BEREBE &)

(q)

WS (E)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

#HEL

GEEmXETP S (A
EREMERREMBERR
R\ K Bl 3R 2 B ) HE SR o Wi 2R
TEERERIEMEER X
BRI SR

HEHEHEE KA

HE#RMEKRNES KA TIRE
SEHRENBEAND HERRE
SR MEMA EMEETER
RERHEEEMSN SRR
AIRRIN - R EBREN B
R REYCFHRE N R AENAE
PRER S » RATHS NI &5
HAR HERR R UL A

FIE KA

M B ANIR B AR R
R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR ERR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEFBR (8

(continued)

(s)  Borrowing costs (continued) (s) fBERA&(E)
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost BREEBREERT —EDHEEK
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for TEEEEARY  BEREAEENE
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being BERABEAERIBEEMVENE
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare FETHHRARERN EFEERE
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. F?ﬁ]\ﬁi%?_jﬁfﬁ&?ﬁ%%m,@ﬁ
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases ”/iﬁlf’ﬁ‘?‘ LESTER R - (BB AR
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 1 FiEgfEIEERE-

the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

(t)  Related parties (t PBEER
(1) A person, or a close member of that person'’s M fH— %/\ifk/\TﬁlJ{ % Al
family, is related to the Group if that person: AANTHRERFEM R B EASE
Elpspea)ik

() has control or joint control over the Group; () ek EIESI A SR :

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBERFEN: %

(i) is a member of the key management (i) REAEEXKNEEEG QA
personnel of the Group or the Group's MEEERENKE -
parent.

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the Q W EAEEF ATWET—HX#’

following conditions applies: Az E R8BS B A

() The entity and the Group are members of () ZELBERASZEBR-—
the same group (which means that each E H Rk B A A (Eﬂ%’\
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is A-MBARIRRRNMB A
related to the others). IR

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) —BERBES —EBME
of the other entity (or an associate or joint BRRIHEERE (HE—
venture of a member of a group of which the ERRKERANEEE
other entity is a member). T E QAR E QA

BEDE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)  Related parties (continued)

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (t)(1).

A person identified in (t)(1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RFRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

3.

(PAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

98 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7]

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting

policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR ERR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group's historical experience with similar assets
taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group evaluates whether there is any objective
evidence that trade receivables are impaired, and
estimates allowances for doubtful debts as a result
of the inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the
ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-
worthiness of the customer and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

1 00 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(i) and 2(g)(i), revenue
recognition on a project is dependent on management's
estimation of the total outcome of the construction
contract, with reference to the progress payment
applications submitted by the Group and progress
certificates issued by customers. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs
and variation orders, prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted
construction costs are prepared by management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by the
major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and
the experience of management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, management conducts
periodic reviews of the budgeted construction costs by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual costs
incurred. Significant judgement is required in estimating
the contract revenue, contract costs and variation work
which may have an impact on percentage of completion
of the construction contracts and the corresponding
profit taken. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
revenue or costs may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future periods as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Annual Report 2017 3k

3.

STHE R AR (2

fly 5t 7 B9 B R 3% 9 ROR
BELK

ANBEE B EE2() K 2(q) (DFT k- IR B A9
WRERRANEREEHEESNE
BROMGET L2RAKERIMNE
ENREFEREPEEAERFR-
AEBRGNETRBNT RETRE
BEADREN AN  AORAR
BEEAMG -EEERELMEIER
MEBEDBER HEAXKESD TEE
HAORE R EE B KRR B EK
AIRE - BGREENSHNEE &
EEAALRBECRNERELK
AT E MY EERATREETERM -
RREEEOWRE AR RER
TREFKEXRHE AMLETE
BEAHTIAD L ARG 25
Holbdh MEREHR - AR s S
AETHBERKRAERSR SRR E
BE  mE BRI ER AR K
wAERESHCHEESRNAE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, ERDIPER

(@) Revenue (@) Wz

Revenue represents revenue from construction contracts Wz 15 70 76 B HA T 2R B 32 525 49 AR

earned and sales of piles during the year. KA E BRI -

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T Tt

Revenue from construction REREES N KR
contracts 754,203 715,006
Sales of piles HEBE 67,704 101
821,907 715,107

(b) Segment information (b) ZEHER

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a REEREBN DR EIRHER - KR

manner consistent with the way in which information is MASERESRTHEREEANTZR

reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive NHBEERETHERROER —B

management for the purposes of resource allocation REFECZ2H T ME AT 2D F0-

and performance assessment, the Group has presented WL E D EERAKXATAZHRS

the following two reportable segments. No operating B o

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

- Construction contracts: this segment provides — BEASN-EAHHmMEEREIR
foundation and general building works to ERREHMER —REETEAR
customers in Hong Kong and Saipan. e

—  Sales of piles: this segment covers sales of piles to — HEBT AR AMEEE
customers in Hong Kong. PiHEEL-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RFRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

(i)

1 02 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7]

Segment information (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments,
the Group's most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all current and non-current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets (if
any) and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include all current and non-current liabilities with
the exception of deferred tax liabilities (if any) and
other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable to
those segments. The measure used for reporting
segment profit is profit before taxation except that
unallocated corporate expenses are excluded from
this measurement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR ERR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAZETTHIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, WERDIBEE (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) ZDEER(E)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHEE BEREE (F)

(continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable RERNNERD B R D BRI
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EmAALEESESRTHEEA
executive management for the purposes of BFRENASETZ2mH HBE
resource allocation and assessment of segment K& -

performance for the year is set out below:

2017
Construction
contracts Sales of piles Total
BEAN HEBE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Revenue from external HNERE P U R
customers 754,203 67,704 821,907
Reportable segment revenue 1] 2 2 % 2 U 754,203 67,704 821,907
Reportable segment profit W22 WER 49,257 5,848 55,105
Interest expenses FERX 1,640 - 1,640
Depreciation for the year FAFE 720 = 720
Reportable segment assets AEBIBEE 448,883 6,984 455,867
Additions to non-current FAMFERE D HBEE
segment assets during NE
the year 976 - 976
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 2R % H & & 213,236 2,698 215,934
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, WERDIBEE (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) ZDEER(E)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHBEE ZEREE (F)
(continued)
2016
Construction
contracts Sales of piles Total
RESH HEBE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt FIT FIT
Revenue from external IR P Y E
customers 715,006 101 715,107
Reportable segment revenue 7] 2 &% 2 Ui 715,006 101 715,107
Reportable segment profit m] 2% 5 265 F 79,820 2 79,842
Interest expenses FEFAX 2,358 - 2,358
Depreciation for the year FRTE 802 - 802
Reportable segment assets EHIBEE 331,024 206 331,230
Additions to non-current FAMFERE D HBEE
segment assets during NE
the year 1,236 - 1,236
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 2R % & & 204,258 867 205,125
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, WERDIBEE (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) ZDEER(E)
(iij)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (i) HE2H7EBFIEER
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Reportable segment profit CIE: BA“ il 55,105 79,842
Unallocated corporate VYN 175
expenses (23,899) (24,555)
Consolidated profit before AT 4R & 5
taxation 31,206 55,287
(iii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment assets (i) TE2H7HEEFALELH K
and liabilities
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets ~ A] 2D EPE E 455,867 331,230
Other corporate assets HibRAm&EE - 7,776
Elimination of inter-segment 43 &0 & & Y 70 T8 % 84
receivables (6,848) (109)
449,019 338,897
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 648 -
Consolidated total assets MEBEEMHE 449,667 338,897
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RFRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJTTFII7R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b) Segment information (continued)

(iii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment assets

4.

Wk oBER &)

(b)

DEER (F)

(i) HE2H7HEEHEE ELH K

and liabilities (continued) (%)
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment AEWMoFBE
liabilities 215,934 205,125
Other corporate liabilities At mBE 1,006 7,813
Elimination of inter-segment % 2B & J& (< 3R TB & $5
payables (6,848) (109)
210,092 212,829
Deferred tax liabilities BEEIEE G = 204
Consolidated total liabilities ~ #3& B &2 210,092 213,033

1 06 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ¥R ERR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued)
(iv) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group's
property, plant and equipment (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the

Wk oBER #2)

by DHER (&)
(iv) HEZH

TEREINEBOAKEINDEF
Wt RAEEYE BE K
RE(HEFRRBEE]) WM
BUEEH -FPUWEMERE
REHRRBARINTEMOLE -
RESERBEEMMIEUEEE

services were provided or the goods delivered. The REENBERTEH
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the
assets.
Revenue from external customers: HNERE P U as
2017 2016
$’'000 $'000
T T Tz
Hong Kong BB
(place of domicile) (EEh ) 662,768 656,339
Saipan EI 159,139 58,268
821,907 715,107

Physical location of the specified non-current

FESEMBEENERTEM

assets:

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T Tz

Hong Kong BB
(place of domicile) (ZiEHh ) 2,570 9,080
Saipan EI 2,697 7,393
5,267 16,473
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, WERDIBEE (&)

(continued)
() Information about major customers (00 BEHREXTEEFHNEHR
Revenue from customers during the year contributing FRRBEREEBREBBI0%HE
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FrRgEMT
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T T
Customer A (note) ZEA (R 159,139 *
Customer B ZFB 104,882 *
Customer C BRC 101,602 *
Customer D =FD & 80,622
Customer E ®PE 2 78,585
* Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 10% of * REHBEEPO BRI RAERE
the Group's total revenue for the respective year. BT EHBUES10% ©
Note: The Controlling Shareholders hold 10% effective interest FEE - PERRAR R R — R AR AR R )
in Customer A through a private company co-owned by HBEMLARTEBEFANI0NE
the Controlling Shareholders. PRfEas
5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hflr A
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Rental income from lease of machinery o A M B FE 2 A 180 562
Sales of scrap materials EERIEE = 60
Exchange (loss)/gain HNE (B518) e (149) 180
Others H A, 270 341
301 1,143
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

(LAETTHIR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

6. BRBL AT R

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELRTE M R, (BT A) THIEIEE
EH
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) BAFERR AR
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITELZFE 13 108
Interest on bank loans RITERHE 991 1,226
Finance charges on obligations BB EAER
under finance leases B 755 636 1,024
1,640 2,358
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BEIRA (B
remuneration) EEMe)
Contributions to defined contribution ERMHE TR
retirement plans BRI 3,577 3,714
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHAET 118,441 115,530
122,018 119,244
Less: Amount included in construction W ET AR
contracts in progress AR R FRIE (96,540) (99,220)
25,478 20,024
(c) Other items () HfttEE
Depreciation e 12,182 20,333
Less: Amount included in construction BT ATERIEE
contracts in progress A HMFIE (11,462) (19,531)
720 802
Operating lease charges: minimum ERES
lease payments in respect of leasing HEMER
of properties =K S KB 4,134 4,207
Less: Amount included in construction B ET AT RS
contracts in progress EHHIFRIE (635) (936)
3,499 3,271
Cost of goods sold EEEYAAR 60,171 34
Listing expenses il =53 17,314 19,316
Write off of retention receivables o FEWIR R & - 1,400
Write off of deposits and prepayments WisiE e RfartmE 1,021 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR BN & 2,555 333

Annual Report 2017 F3#f

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 15 # 32 5& 1% f2 A IR A &) 1 09



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

7. INCOME TAX 7. FRBH
(@)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss @ #HeEBRakHEMEZEWRREXFME
and other comprehensive income represents: Titg
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Current tax BIEABLIE — BB FEH
- Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year FNEE 9,171 14419
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of RN E S REE
temporary differences (852) (1,269)
8,319 13,150

Notes: BEE

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i)
Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin
Islands.

(if) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at (i)
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year. No
provision for overseas taxation as the Group's overseas
subsidiaries either did not have assessable profits or have
tax credits in excess of assessable profits during the year
in the relevant jurisdiction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

7. INCOME TAX (continued) 7. FiB% (&)

BERREFENRERA g5t
BR B A4 A # AR AT -

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit before taxation at applicable tax rate:

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F 7T T
Profit before taxation B B A& 31,206 55,287
Notional tax on profit before FREE AT A 89 B R A IE -
taxation, calculated at the rates REATEAERER
applicable to the profits in the AR E
jurisdictions concerned 5,996 9,192
Tax effect of non-deductible TRAINB A S RIS 5 8
expenses 3,197 4477
Tax effect of non-taxable income ~ HEAMRKRA TG E (814) (479)
Statutory tax concession EEBIEESR (60) (40)
Actual income tax expense ERAERAS 8,319 13,150
(¢)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial (0 HFEAHBRAKRTOFRERE:
position represents:
()  Current taxation (i) EBPHEABiIE
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F 7T Tt
Provision for the year FNEE 9,171 14,419
Provisional tax paid B EHRIE (14,110) (12,796)
Balance of tax provision HBRTFEREARN
relating to prior years AR R EE S 8,249 7,830
Tax payable FE #7518 3,310 9453
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

7. INCOME TAX (continued) 7. FREB(#)
(©  (continued) © (&)
(i) Deferred taxation (i) EEBLIE
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related
depreciation
TERE
B
MENEHE
$'000
T7T
At 1 January 2016 201651 A1H 1,473
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (1,269)
At 31 December 2016 and M20165F12 4318 k20171 H1H
1 January 2017 204
Credited to profit or loss FFAER (852)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 H31H (648)
There were no material unrecognised deferred tax MR2016%2017612 4318 - &
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 and BEARERNELHRIBAEERSE
2017. S
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEM=
Directors’ emoluments during the year which was included in PERB T AH FE6b) T ER 8 TR AK
the staff costs as disclosed in note 6(b) is as follows: EEMemT:
2017
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind contribution Total
e RER
BEzwe BEYREA  BRARGEER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lee Sai Man (i) 4 R 5 A (i) - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (i) BEH %A ) - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (ii) HARHE S A& (i) - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Lee Kai Lun (v) 7B 5 4 (v) - 1,300 - 1,300
Mr. Kwong Po Lam (v) BRI A& (v) = 1,300 18 1,318
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (vi) BHAE T A (vi) 110 - - 110
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (vi) — Z2J&1E 5% & (vi) 110 - - 110
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (vi) BEEREEWV) 110 - - 110
Total 5 330 6,149 72 6,551
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. EEM=»)
2016
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Directors' fees  benefits in kind contribution Total
He 2Rk
E=Me EMEF  BRREEIER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Lee Sai Man (i) FR KA - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (i) BEH KL - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (ii BAR S A i) - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Lee Kai Lun (v) MR SE £ () - 800 - 800
Mr. Kwong Po Lam (v) BRI A (v) - 800 14 814
Independent BYEHITES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (vi) B A0 B A (vi) - - - -
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (vi) 2248 £ 5% & (vi) - - - -
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (vi) EER LV - - - -
Total et - 5,149 68 5217
Notes: ks
() During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, (i) REZE2016F &2017F12A3HILEFER
emoluments of Mr. Lee and Mr. Kan were paid by WWWC and ARELRERBELEAEFEERARRF
the Company for their directorships in WWWC and the Company WESE  RENF B EREEREARFE
respectively. EERR
(i) During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, (i)  REZE2016F &2017F12A31HILEFER
emolument of Mr. Wong was paid by SCE and the Company for HREXERENIERARANES -
his directorship in SCE and the Company respectively. BHRFHNRBERIERANAREE I
(i)~ No director received any emoluments from the Group as (i FA -AEEVEREZSIECIS - F
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BMAREE LR MARNES HIERE
compensation for loss of office during the year. No director BEE - FA UTEEEHREXRBNERK
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. R B o
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

8. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. EEM=E »#)
Notes: (continued) Msx (&
(iv)  The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 23 (iv)  ANAER2017F6 238 RN —EE AR
June 2017. There were no options granted for the purchase B REZE2017F12A3B EFERERT
of ordinary shares in the Company during the year ended 31 BEREABERARTNETBR-
December 2017.
v) Mr. Lee Kai Lun (‘Mr. KL Lee") and Mr. Kwong Po Lam (“Mr. (v) MRS oA (TFIRBE R £ ) RBRM A
Kwong") were appointed as executive directors of the Company (TEBSEAE])M2016F5BcHELZ T AR
on 6 May 2016. RIFITE S
(vi)  Mr. Fan Siu Kay, Mr. Leung William Wai Kai and Mr. Lo Chi Leung (viy BBAELEE REELEEREERLER
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the 201655 A6 H EEE AR R R B IEFHTT
Company on 6 May 2016. EF-
9. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. HERBHFMALTHME
INDIVIDUALS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all (2016: hEEaHWMALTH 23 (20165 1 38)
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. HEAES HEWeEERIES - KB ALK
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining M sagEmn T

individuals are as follows:

2017 2016

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 2 8E & E W42 7 - 1,860
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT = 155
Retirement scheme contributions RREF B R = 38
- 2,053
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10.

(PAETTHIR)

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The emoluments of the above individuals are within the
following bands:

o.

ERESHMATHEE 2)

FRALTHHE B T :

2017 2016
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANEL
Nil to $1,000,000 = £1,000,0007C - 1
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,00017% 2 1,500,0007T - 1
EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) EXERER

(b)

1 1 6 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of $22,887,000 (2016: $42,137,000) and the
weighted average of 442,915,068 (2016: 384,000,000)
ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2017
on the assumption that the Reorganisation, subdivision
of shares of the Company and the Capitalisation Issue, as
detailed in notes 2(b), 19(c)(i) and 19(c)(v) respectively,
had been completed on 1 January 2016.

Diluted earnings per share
There were no potential dilutive shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

and, therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as
the basic earnings per share.
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M. YE -BERKE

Plant and Furniture Motor Office
machinery  and fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BER RAR BAE

Bl £E AE B ] Fob

§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H 104,879 2,468 1,300 141 108788
Additions NE 750 254 232 - 1236
Disposals HE - - (68) - (68)
At31December2016  R0I6F2A3E 105629 272 o lAe L 109956 _
At 1 January 2017 201751 A1H 105,629 2722 1,464 141 109,956
Additions NE 392 584 - - 976
At31December2017  BO07FRANAE 06021 3306 l4ed L 110932
Accumulated depreciation: ZIHE !
At 1 January 2016 R201651 1R 71413 1023 745 37 73218
Charge for the year FAMRK 19,694 427 185 27 20333
Written back on disposals HERRE - - (68) - (68)
At31December2016 BOI6FI2A3B o oulo7 140 g2 64 93483
At 1 January 2017 R201751 1R 91,107 1450 862 64 93483
Charge for the year FRNk 11,462 484 212 24 12,182
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 102,569 1934 1074 88 105,665
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2017 20178 12A31H 3452 1372 390 53 5,267
At 31 December 2016 #2016F12A318 14,522 1272 602 77 16473
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. NE - BERSKE®)
(continued)
Assets held under finance leases BEREEEEENEE
Certain machinery and motor vehicles were held under finance REMEREFENE TR LB REE
leases and their net book value is analysed as follows: mFEITAT:
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Cost - Capitalised finance lease RAR—EREREHRE 44,146 56,236
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (44,035) (50,061)
Net book value FREDFE 111 6,175
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

R B R BRE

TREJHHARERE BEXAEARE
BEXENNBRANFER R BEAE
S P ER R RO SR RIS 5 B B A

stated.
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEEEOL
Issued and Group's
Place of Date of fully paid-up effective Held by  Principal
Name of company incorporation incorporation capital interest  the Company  activities
BRTR EEEN AT

NEER o 1R B 3L B AR A BERE BEM LR #E  TEXR
WWWC Hong Kong 7 May 1999 $81,636,000 100% - Construction and

engineering
EHEE BA 199965 A7H 81,636,0007C BERTRZ
SCE Hong Kong 19 January 2006 $10,000 100% - Construction and

engineering
BT &R 200651 A 198 10,0007C BERIRE
WWWM Hong Kong 20 October 2004 $10,000 100% - Trading of piles
ERDH BA 20049104208 10,0007T BHEE
WWWC (Saipan) Saipan 26 August 2014 US$200,000 100% - Construction and

engineering
WWWC (Saipan) 30 201448 A 26H 200,000 7T BERTRE
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13. EGRHEHAMEWFIE

2017 2016

$’000 $'000

T F7T

Trade debtors FEUE SRR 59,101 45,401
Deposits, prepayments and Ze FENRIEREM

other receivables (note (7)) e IE (MIREa)) 13,858 20,088

Retentions receivable (note (ii)) FEUUR B & (HIaEdi)) 98,815 86,194

171,774 151,683

Less: Non-current portion R SEBNEAEL - (1,021)

171,774 150,662

Notes:

(i) Except for the amount of $715,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: $614,000) which was expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after one year, all of the remaining

balance is expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.

(i) Except for the amount of $71,744,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: $71,285,000) which was expected to be recovered
after one year, all of the remaining balance is expected to be

recovered within one year.

1 20 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors,
based on invoice date (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) with the following ageing analysis at the end of

13. ESREMERFE &)

(a) BRE DT

FFAB S REAMEBIAF & R R
BIER(NBERERB)  ERE
EHMREERARBEHOKREKE DT

the reporting period: 1
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
SEoE T
Within 1 month ME A A 10,605 42,649
1to 2 months 122/ & A 2,200 350
2 to 3 months 2E31E A - -
Over 3 months 3ME A KA E 46,296 2,402
59,101 45,401

Trade debtors are normally due within 0-60 days from
invoice date. Further details on the Group's credit policy
are set out in note 20(a).

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of the Group's
trade debtors were considered to be impaired.
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAETTHIR)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

1 22 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

13. ESREMEWRFIE &)

(0 RBEEKESKRMX

4 A1) Ko 2k Rl 48 AR A R0 18 0 FE U

SRR AR DT :

2017 2016

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Neither past due nor impaired R 380 B IR R (B 10,605 42,649
Less than 1 month past due wE D E A 2,200 350
1to 3 months past due wmEN =38 A 1,188 152
Over 3 months past due B B R A3 E A 45,108 2,250
59,101 45,401

Receivables which were neither past due nor impaired
related to a range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables which were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ 7T 317K )

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14. BERBITEER
(@) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a BHERB\BOTLEHKEFE !
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T FT

Pledged bank deposits (note 18) BIEMIRITER

(Hi5E18) 36,315 -

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 19,736 19,501
Cash and bank balances REFETBRRARNIRE

in the consolidated statement of MIRTT

financial position 56,051 19,501
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEIRRITER (36,315) -
Cash and cash equivalents in REEEHRERERD

the consolidated cash flow HekReSEY

statement 19,736 19,501
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

14. BERBITHEER &)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBABAELEMSHELSNYIER:

generated from operations:

2017 2016
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tt Tt
Operating activities ReEEH
Profit before taxation R 354 Al Vg A 31,206 55,287
Adjustments for: HTFEIEFE -
Finance costs B 7% Bk 2N 6(a) 1,640 2,358
Depreciation e 6(c) 720 802
Write off of retention receivables 58 FE VR R & 6(c) = 1,400
Write off of deposits and Mgk e KB HRIE 6(c)
prepayments 1,021 -
Changes in working capital: EEEL®E !
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & H 4th JiE Y B
A0 (28,888) (3,948)
Increase in gross amounts due from EREF&EHTRE
customers for contract work FRIERFEIE N (53,810) (67,994)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 hEAMENFKIA
other payables CRA) /18 (19,499) 57,842
Increase/(decrease) in gross amounts  JEftE P A K TIEFIA
due to customers for contract work BEEE I, CRd) 5,004 (4412)
Increase in amounts due to FE A A B 5 R IEAE 0
related parties 4,345 -
Cash (used in)/generated g () /RS
from operations (58,261) 41,335
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S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 14. BERBITHEHER &)

()  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 RMETBFRELEENYHE
activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR ASEREMETHHNEE
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing VEEIFE RMETBAMEANBER
BeEMIARRS RGN AEELE
EREMERTEROBRBMEEIHR

activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
further cash flows will be, classified in the Group's

consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from SMHBE-
financing activities.
Bank loans  Finance leases Total
RITEM MERE et
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr
(note 18) (note 17)
(FMI5E18) (Ff3E17)

At 1 January 2017 7201781818 29,033 16,958 45,991
Changes from financing MERESREEH:

cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans FEIRITERE

EQE 43,996 - 43,996

Repayment of bank loans EERITER (22,033) - (22,033)
Interest paid ERFE (1,004) - (1,004)
Capital element of finance ENBMEHEERES

lease rentals paid ORI - (7,823) (7,823)
Interest element of finance ENREHERS

lease rentals paid EoRIBSREILv) - (636) (636)
Total changes from financing MEREREBER
__Gshflows . ________ . cvgee  Bese =0
Other changes: Hi s !
Financial charges on obligations BEMERENTH

under finance leases (note 6(a)) B (3Fe()) - 636 636
Interest expenses FERZ 1,004 = 1,004
Total other changes Hitn # B 4258 1,004 636 1,640
At 31 December 2017 20175%F12H31H 50,996 9,135 60,131
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 14. BERBITHEER (2
(d) Major non-cash transactions (d EEFBEEXH

As disclosed in note 19(b) to these financial statements,
dividends of $107,256,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 were set off against “Amounts due from
related parties”.

BB SRR IO T E  HE
2016%F 12 A31H LEF 107,256,000/ 7T
2% B B [ R B R 7 7R 0E | g

15. GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 15. B BAEFEHNIRIIEA
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK £
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Gross amounts due from customers EWEFEHNIRRE
for contract work B
Contract costs incurred plus recognised ~ BE £ A #IRK A INE #R
profits less recognised losses &= R B iR E 1B 2,100,257 1,483,963
Less: Progress billings received and W B R B UCE E AR
receivable (1,884,330) (1,332,723)
215,927 151,240
Gross amounts due to customers for ENEFANIRRE
contract work pakc]
Progress billings received and receivable 2 4% K JIE U #E & 1+ 3¢ 37,629 195,807
Less: Contract costs incurred plus B BEES AN
recognised profits less 2 R0 R
recognised losses EREE (26,032) (188,630)
11,597 7177
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract work are FTA BN, PN B P& #) T2 ;I8 42 58 78 47
expected to be recovered/settled within one year. R—ERUREEE -

1 26 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. T EEZERGR AR Annual Report 2017 45§



Notes to the Financial Statements

S ESE eI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TT3I7R)

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 16. EZ R HEMENFKIE
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade creditors FERNE SRR 86,892 78,063
Other payables and accruals Hin e RIBEREER 22,744 59,306
Receipt in advance TR I8 - 1,260
Retentions payable EHRE S 21,073 11,579
130,709 150,208
Note: Except for the amount of $17,856,000 as at 31 December 2017 B - 20179128318 + B&17,856,0007T (2016
(2016: $10,470,000), which was expected to be settled after one F 110,470,0007T ) FE B A — F & UK BN
year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be settled FrEMRBEEEN —FRkE -

within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based HAAESREMENTIERN AENE SR
on invoice date, with the following ageing analysis at the end of PoERREARKREZEQESHAERE D
the reporting period: T
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T Fi
Within 1 month &A™ 43,991 31,274
1to 2 months 1Z2m & A 14,137 17,750
2 to 3 months 2ZE3ME A 7,228 8,446
Over 3 months 3E A A £ 21,536 20,593
86,892 78,063
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

17. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 17. BAEHEEE
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance 20175124318 - REE /) 5L E H &R E
leases repayable as follows: BRI EAR(ER
2017 2016

Present Total Present Total

value of minimum value of minimum

the minimum lease the minimum lease

lease payments payments lease payments payments

RERE REAE REEE REHE
AREE FHRAR HRRE DES:E

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T FIT
Within Tyear — ®A 6674 6952 788 8454
After 1 year but 1FREFR
within 2 years 2,461 2,502 6,674 6,952
After 2 years but 2FRIBSFER
within 5 years - - 2461 2,502
2,461 2,502 9,135 9,454
9,135 9,454 16,958 17,908
Less: Total future interest W ARRFERT
expenses R (319) (950)
Present value of lease HEAERE
obligations 9,135 16,958
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18. BANK LOANS 18. RITER
The bank loans were repayable as follows: RITERIE T HARER
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F 7T T
Within 1 year or on demand TFEARIREREE 50,996 29,033
As at 31 December 2016, the Group's banking facilities were 201651284318 REBERITHE AT
secured and guaranteed by: BB EEH R
(a)  a guarantee to the extent of $4,800,000 granted by the (@ HBEAEFNTHEBERESINEE
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 1R 78 5T 813 T B #£1R4,800,0007T :
Region under the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme;
(b)  legal charges over bonds, deposits and certain properties () MEHF TFREREBFFENE T
held by related parties; TEHEEEE A
(© personal guarantees provided by the Controlling (© BAEAREIERRRRMHAEAER:
Shareholders of the Company;
(d)  corporate guarantees provided by related parties; d) BEBTRENDEEER:
(e)  assignments of insurance proceeds over the Controlling (e) MARNEIERBRESEEREREES:
Shareholders of the Company; and &
(f)  counter-indemnity provided by a subsidiary for the  \B—FEREARREEERKBELOR
issuance of guarantee or performance bond. FMRHA R BE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTFI7R)

18. BANK LOANS (continued) 18. (RITEFR (&)

Except for (f), the above pledge of properties and guarantees
had been released and replaced by guarantees of the Company
as at 31 December 2017. Bank deposits of $36,315,000 (see
note 14(a)) were also pledged to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group as at 31 December 2017. In addition,
it was provided in the agreement with a bank for banking
facilities that if the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 51%
interests in the Company, then the bank is entitled to request
immediate repayment of any outstanding loans and accrued
interest.

The bank loans bear interest ranging from 3.75% to 5% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 3% to 5%
per annum).

The bank loans are classified by the Group as current liabilities
as they are repayable within one year or the lender possesses
unconditional right to call the loan at any time on demand.

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 20(b). As at 31 December 2017,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached (2016: $Nil).
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 19. EX - RERKE
(@) Movement in components of equity (a) HERMERBOEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEGEEREESAKE D EY &
balances of each component of the Group's consolidated HRGEHR o HNHEHENGEERE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of B3k o NN F AR KR AR OR (R Bl i 2 4B Y
changes in equity. Details of the Company's individual EHommFEHINeT

components of equity between the beginning and the
end of the period are set out below:

The Company
b /N
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
(&N M 1018 Rt EE wat
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 201651818 &t
1 January 2016 —* - - —*
Loss and total comprehensive  F B8 & 2 Mz
income for the year BE - - - -
Balance at R2016F12831H K
31 December 2016 &k = - - =
Balance at R2017F1 B1B &
1 January 2017 =* - - =*
Issuance of new shares under  RIZEA BTG
the Reorganisation (B EE19(c) i) )
(note 19(c)(iif)) 234 - - 234
Issuance of new shares under — 1RIE B X AR EEITELT
IPO, net of issuing expenses MR MR
(note 19(c)(iv)) F s (BFE19(0v)) 1,280 89,545 - 90,825
Capitalisation issue BRI BT
(note 19(0)(v)) (FFEET9(0MW) ) 3,606 (3,606) - -
Loss and total comprehensive  F NE1E & 2 Has
income for the year e - - (4,522) (4,522)
Balance at M2017F12A318 K
31 December 2017 223 5,120 85,939 (4,522) 86,537
* The balance represents an amount of less than $1,000. * FZHBERERDRI000TTH 2 -
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(b)

()

1 3 2 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Dividends

The directors did not propose the payment of a dividend
by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, dividend of
$143,644,000 was declared and settled by WWWC to the
then shareholder.

Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 5 October 2015.
Upon incorporation of the Company, 3,000 ordinary
shares of $0.1 each were allotted and issued at par.

Share capital as at 31 December 2017 solely represented
the share capital of the Company. Share capital as at 31
December 2016 represented the combined share capital
of the Company and Win Win Way Investment Holdings
Limited.
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(c)

R 2=

BEETEZ AR REE2017128
JTHEFEIRMR S - # Z=2016512 A
STALEFE  EHHEEAERORRE
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 19. EX-RERKRE (@)
(continued)
(c)  Share capital (continued) () BA&(#E)
The Company
NN
2017 2016
No. of No. of

Par value shares Amount shares Amount

HE RHEE ¢8 RHEA e

S $'000 $'000

JT T T

Authorised ordinary shares  EE L ER

At 1 January MA1R 0.01/0.1 38,000,000 380 3,800,000 380
Share subdivision (note () ARA #7480 (Ft5E()) - - 34200000 -
Increase in authorised EEBERIE

ordinary shares (note (ii) (B35EG) 001 962,000,000 9,620 - -
At 31 December W12A318 0.01 1,000,000,000 10,000 38,000,000 380
Issued and fully paid CETRAREER

ordinary shares
At 1 January W1A1H 0.01/0.1 30,000 =+ 3,000 -
Share subdivision (note (i) B4R 4 (BIEEG)) - = 27,000 -
Issuance of new shares under  181& & A B1THD

the reorganisation (note (i) (F#E(ii)) 001 23,400,000 234 - -
Issuance of new shares BEERDRETET

under IPO, net of issuing R R ET

expenses (note (iv)) ¥ (FEiv) 001 128,000,000 1,280 - -
Capitalisation issue (note (v)) B AL 31T (HIEEW) 001 360,570,000 3,606 - -
At 31 December M12A318 0.01 512,000,000 5,120 30,000 —*
* The balance represents an amount of less than $1,000. * ZHBBERERD000TTHEEE
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

()

Share capital (continued)

Notes:

0]

(iii)

(iv)

1 34 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

On 3 February 2016, the Company divided each of the
issued and unissued ordinary shares of par value of $0.1
each in the share capital of the Company into 10 ordinary
shares of par value of $0.01 each.

On 23 June 2017, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from $380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of $0.01 each to
$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
par value of $0.01 each by the creation of an additional
962,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of $0.01 each.

On 23 June 2017, Mr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Mr. Wong (as
vendors) and the Company (as purchaser) entered into
a sales and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Win
Win Way Investment Holdings Limited held by Mr. Kan,
Mr. Lee and Mr. Wong (the “Transfer”). In consideration
of the Transfer, the Company issued a total of 23,400,000
ordinary shares to Condover Assets Limited (“Condover
Assets”) at the direction of Mr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Mr. Wong.

On 17 July 2017, the Company was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange following the completion of its
share offer of 128,000,000 shares issued at a price of
$0.86 per share. The Company received net proceeds
of approximately $90,825,000 (after deducting listing
expenses) in respect of the Listing.

On 17 July 2017, a total of 360,570,000 shares were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, to
Condover Assets by way of capitalisation of a sum of
$3,606,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).
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(iii)

(iv)

MR2016F2A3H  ANA A E R A
EREEI TN ERITRREITYE
BRD BIRERMEBE T LR
Hﬁo

MR2017F6 238 AR EBEBIEE
8 91N962,000,000% & % T {E0.01 7T )
T AR - A TE AR 2N 89380,0007T
(%9 £38,000,0000% & J& EI{H0.01 7T
K& @ A% ) # %10,000,0007T (D A
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i) e

201756 A238 - B E FEER
mhEEWERER)BARNF (EA
BRIV EE R Bt AARK
BER ST A ~ A I R AR Win Win
Way Investment Holdings Limited &
ME2MEBITRA(TEE]) ER
ERORE RNRFHRELTE Tt
A Ik St A K FE /R [AlCondover Assets
Limited ([ Condover Assets | ) 21T &
$£23,400,0000% % 38 A% -

R2017F 78178 AR BIFE R IR
[1%0.86 7T #9 {8 1% 8 17128,000,000%
B EAR M B E % - IR E AT £
e AR FIp A AT SIBF 2R
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to provisions, if
any, of its memorandum and articles of association
in paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii)  Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contributions from and distributions to the
Controlling Shareholders as a result of the
reorganisation before the Listing.

(iii)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(r).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association, was $81,417,000 (2016: SNil).
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BB AEH ) 2 K ©

(i) B R #E
N BB ERIRE G INES
BHRRMEENABINEEZLE -
AEEFERIEN 20 TE A S 5T
REIE -

(e) REUDIKM

2017124318 » KRB A #H D& T
RAREEBRENRERSTE (RIEH
ERERAERARRMABERERE
N 41 Bl 5T &) A81,417,0007T (20164 :
i) e
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19. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(f)

1 36 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to fund its business,
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
interest bearing loans and borrowings, and obligations
under finance leases) less cash and bank balances. Total
equity comprises all components of equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company. During 2017, the
Group's strategy was to maintain the adjusted net debt-
to-equity ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 50%.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) requires contractors on
the list of approved contractors for public works (the
“List") to maintain such minimum working capital as
the Government may from time to time determine (the
“Required Minimum Working Capital”). A subsidiary of the
Company is subject to the Required Minimum Working
Capital as the subsidiary is a contractor on the List. Except
for this, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits and trade and other receivables. The Group has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any
single financial institution. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any of these financial
institutions and counterparties will fail to meet their
obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed as part of the acceptance
procedures for new construction contracts. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 0-60 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
significant concentration of credit risk in a few customers.
In view of their credit standing, good payment record
and long established relationships with the Group,
management does not consider the Group's credit risk to
be significant. At 31 December 2017, 70% (2016: 36%) of
the total trade debtors was due from the Group's largest
customer and 77% (2016: 78%) of the total trade debtors
was due from the Group's five largest customers.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

1 38 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 13.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising
of loans to cover the expected cash demands. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed funding lines
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

For bank loans subject to repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the maturity analysis shows the cash outflow based
on expected repayment dates with reference to the
schedule of repayments set out in the banking facilities
letter and, separately, the impact to the timing of the
cash outflow if the lenders were to invoke unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ANDFAIR 20. ¢ RiEMEEL SR T AENATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEK(£)

At 31 December 2017

120175128318

Total Morethan ~ More than

contractual Withinin ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than Over
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5years 5 years

BRRME

BeRE  1FAF 1ERE 2FNE
REE b EZR B25F R B5F R SEME
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

fn___ ¥R Fx___ Ffr___¥n____*x

Bank loans RITER 50,996 52,060 52,060 - - -
Trade and other payables BHREMERTA 130,709 130,709 112,853 17,856 - -
Obligations under finance leases B & 1 B % J& 9,135 9,454 9,454 - - -

190,840 192,223 174,367 17,856 S =
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ANDFAIR 20. ¢ RiEMEEL SR T AENAYE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEK(£)

At 31 December 2016
1R2016%F12831H

Total More than More than
contractual Within in lyearbut  2years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than Over
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years 5 years
AHARER

RERE 1F R 10 E ENE

REE B EZ sk 2R BSER SEME
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FR_ ¥R ¥R ¥R Ix iz
Bank loans RITER 29,033 30965 16,703 2141 11817 304
Trade and other payables BHRAMENTE 150,208 150,208 139,738 10470 - -
Obligations under finance leases B & 18 B %12 16,958 17,908 8454 6,952 2,502 -
196,199 199,081 164,895 19,563 14319 304
Adjustments to present cash flows 8% A £ F1R &
on bankloans based on lender's ~ BFAZRIER
right to demand repayment MEMFELH
TEFHRERE (1,932) 12330 (2,141) (11,817) (304)
197,149 177,225 17422 2,502 -
() Interest rate risk () FEES
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank REBHFERREEREBITER
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose REFBDHERENERSAEBET
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group REMEFEE g o REEIW AT
has not used financial derivatives to hedge against the 0T A b EE om ¥R R SR B fge o ST
interest rate risk. However, from time to time, if interest IR AR IBRE) - & T REREUE & 5 1E
rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate measures would NEBNERR - EREEIENARE
be taken to manage interest risk exposure. The Group’s (5] FI| = 1F 5L A T 3L () ©
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set
out in (i) below.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest- REBEF BRI REEERR
bearing borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 18 B FS R MY sE 1890 55 -

to these financial statements.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 20. 2R EERESRM T AN EE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) () R=EREB (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i)  FIEHX
The following table details the interest rate profile TR 5 2N 5 B S A M R AR
of the Group's borrowings. e
2017 2016
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERAE &5 BB X i)
% $'000 % $'000
T T
Variable rate FEAERER:
borrowings:
Bank loans RITE 3.75% to B5% 50,99 3%t E5% 29033
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SBEDH

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after
taxation and retained profits by approximately
$426,000 (2016: $242,000), in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as 2016.
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20178128318 - (5 if R R
BEE EF TNRRI1001EE B
FrEEMEHERTE A5H
R B 0m M) R AR BB v 1 A E A
REE R TREDBIRL
hn#%7426,0007T (20164F © 242,000
TT) °

SRR D AT TR R AR F R
FERMESREEmMET I
ERREREGFEMNEITES R
TEAMFRER E-ZBS TR
2016 F IR HE R AT
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

21.

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars. As the Hong Kong dollars is
pegged to the United States dollars, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
Hong Kong dollars and the United States dollars to be
insignificant.

(e) Fair values measurement
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2017, the Group's total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

20 TRAEREEREMIAAYE
(%)

21.

(e)

Z

ShEEELBR

AKEY BEHEEERINE R BAAR
SENBABORZIAETTRETE
B-ARNBITEETHE  AEERR
BRAAXTZERZEHREBTIEKX -

AFEME

NEBRK AR BIEK AT ENS B
BEEMBEMEREMAEZEELN017F KX
2006F 12 A3THM A TFELTEEXRE
Ho

20179128318 » NREERE T A BUHE &
LHERMNNOARSERASNREEDNT

as follows:
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T F7t
Within 1 year 1A 2,984 1,965
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FZESFR 3,700 83
6,684 2,048
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21.

22,

(LAETTHIR)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

During 2015, Mr. Lee, a director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, provided a personal guarantee in respect of the
observation of all terms and conditions, including payment
of rent of $13,000 per month, of one of the Group’s tenancy
agreements entered into with a landlord with a lease period
commencing from 6 November 2015 to 5 November 2017. On
13 October 2016, the Group served a notice to the landlord to
terminate the aforesaid tenancy agreement effective from 12
November 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CLAIMS

(@ At 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of performance bonds to guarantee
the due and proper performance of the obligations
undertaken by the Group's subsidiaries for projects
amounting to $64,667,500 (2016: $84,062,500).

In 2012, WWWC set up an arrangement with a third
party to jointly undertake a construction project
with a contract sum of $270,000,000. Pursuant to
the requirements of the construction contract (the
“Contract”), WWWC and the third party entered into an
agreement with the customer to jointly and severally
guarantee the due and proper performance of the
Contract and thus the Group had contingent liabilities
in this respect as at 31 December 2017. Given the defect
liability period for the Contract had expired in October
2015 and no claims were received from the customer
up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the directors do not consider it is probable that a claim
would be made against the Group and no provision has
been made in the financial statements.

21.

22,
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AIE (&)

AEBRUAREHELAEAZ B RN
HA-BBRHER -—RMEF VARES
HERMBGRERHEN ZEHETER
AR

2015F  RAFIEBRIERBEFT L EH
BrHEP—HHRASEEETMT AR
2015411 B6H #£ 22017911 AsH IR
EMBEOMERIEES (RREXNESE
A13,00070 ) 2 4 B8 A &R - 72016510513
B AEEREZHLBAKIE MBS
& E2016F 11 A12BBER -

HAREERFR

@@ F2017F12R31 AEBERERAEE
MEB AR ERNZAEITHIEE AR
MEALAEBHREY EmMEESA
B 1564,667,5007T (20164 © 84,062,500
JL) °

R20NF EHBEEHE-RE=FF
VHELTHEEREAE -HANRES
270,000,000TC YR ELTE B - IRIBRES
B([ZEHN]MESR EREERZ
B HEEFPIIY—BHE XRAR
AR E R ER Z BEITE 4 ALt

AEBPR2017F12A31B L FHE S
REAB-ENZAVNREELHE
R2015F10 A28 BEEE S0 ETR
REBRMBABUYEKIEFEENER
B EERATENEHRIEAER
MRE - QB S BHREFIED
Bl o
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22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CLAIMS

(continued)

(©

1 44 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

The Group initiated legal proceedings in December
2015 and filed a statement of claims in January 2016
against a subcontractor and its director for their breach
of a sub-contracting agreement in relation to a project
(the "Project”) and claimed an amount of approximately
$9,914,000, representing the Group's direct payments
to other subcontractors in relation to the Project which
were made on behalf of the subcontractor. In May
2016, the subcontractor filed a defence and made
passing reference to a counterclaim of approximately
$41,328,000. However, no counterclaim is formulated and
presented in the defence by the subcontractor. Based
on the opinion of the Group's legal adviser, the directors
are of the view that the claim from the subcontractor is
invalid with little prospect of success and accordingly no
provision has been made in the financial statements.

Having considered the pending determination of the
final account of the Project between the Group and
the customer, the Group took out a stay summons
on 7 August 2017 and a discontinuance summons
on 16 August 2017 on its legal proceedings against
the subcontractor so as to consolidate the claim
of $9,914,000 against the subcontractor with the
determination of final account of the Project. In
September 2017, the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region granted leave to the Group
to withdraw the stay summons and to discontinue the
legal proceedings.

Regarding the aforesaid Project, there was a delay in
its completion by the Group. The architect appointed
by the customer indicated that the customer was
entitled to deduct a sum of approximately $21,125,000
for liquidated damages (‘LD Claim”), in addition to the
liquidated damages of approximately $1,950,000 already
deducted by the customer. The Group has engaged an
external contract consultant to assess the exposure of the
potential LD Claim. Based on the opinion of the contract
consultant, the Directors consider that the likelihood of
the Group being liable to such LD Claim is highly unlikely
and hence no provision has been made in the financial
statements.
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Mo BHERRESREERFR I
R016F 1A RRBARRME  HRS
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23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions identified
summarised as follows:

(a) Related party transactions

during the year are

23. EXBAB SRS

AREBERFADFL FINERBH IR S

(a) BEAXRS

Name of party Relationships BBEER BE
Paul Tong & Associates A private company owned by Mr. Kan ERBIRER —ERHETRARANER
Consulting Engineers Limited ~ and a senior management of BRAR ERASAENLALRRA
(‘Paul Tong") the Company ([EXR])
Wong & Cheng Consulting A private company owned by Mr. FOBEMIRM ~HABEER—RBUE=
Engineers Limited Kwong and an independent BRAR FHEEMLALRE
(Wong & Cheng”) third party ([=8EER])
Guangzhou Yangcheng Common director and indirect GuangzhouYangcheng  EHIERNAREE LM%
Pile Co. Ltd associate of WWWH Pile Co. Ltd L UNS
(‘Guangzhou Yangcheng) ([Guangzhou
Yangcheng | )
KLDL Consultants (‘KLDL") A private company owned KLDL Consultants —FmFRB T EEENALA
by Mr. KL Lee (TkoL ) AF]
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Consultancy fee paid to Paul Tong A1E L B S T O BE [ B
(note) (PEE) 6,191 -
Consultancy fee paid MESEMTHEME
to Wong & Cheng (note) (HE5E) 2,172 2,864
Purchase of goods from @ Guangzhou Yangcheng
Guangzhou Yangcheng (note) BEED (M) 41,624 -
Consultancy fee paid to KLDL MKLDLZ 1 B B ] B 1,000 450
Note: As defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the above- Mk : RIE EWRAETOAZHRAE - &

mentioned related party transactions in respect of

consultancy fees paid to related companies and purchase

of goods from a related company constitute continuing
connected transactions or connected transactions. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Directors'
Report.
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23. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23. EXBEE AKX S (&)

(continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) ERRAEES WAL SRR
At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Amounts due to directors FEREE B 4,345 -
Amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free JENESFIEREER 28BN EE
and have no fixed repayment terms. TE R AR
() Key management personnel () ETEEBAEB
Remuneration of key management personnel, including FTZEBEBEAEBMNFN(BRIEESMHT
amounts paid to the executive directors as disclosed in EENHIE(RWEsEE) REd
note 8 and senior management as disclosed in note 9, is ERERENRIE (R EE) )
as follows: HylmT -
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
T it
Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 9,334 8,009
Post-employment benefits BERL 2 A2 A 126 123
9,460 8,132
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note MemBEesr ATEIRA] (RHE
6(b)). 6(b)) °
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24, COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 24. /A 7] fE W B RO &
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016

Note $'000 $'000

[z T Tt
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETEBARHKRE 234 =
ettt e 234 - -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [N NEIE L] 88,812 202
Cash and bank balances Re MIBT1TE % 1,028 -
ettt B 89,840 202
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables L FE AT SR8 3,537 202
N = 35%7 202 _
Netcurrentassets = WRBHEERE 86303 - -
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBAS 86,537 _*
NET ASSETS BEEFE 86,537 —*
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRFE 19(a)
Share capital A& A 19(c) 5,120 —*
Reserves T 81,417 -
TOTAL EQUITY S 86,537 —*
* The balance represents an amount of less than $1,000. * ZEHARTERER D000 S RE -

Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 #3252 i A R A & 1 47



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (BAJ&TTFII7R)

25. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 25. BEEERBARERA

PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate R20177F 1283 H EEREN KB R L H
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be B A 32 By Condover Assets B AR SE BHE
Condover Assets, which is incorporated in the British Virgin B AR RGEIERT - 2 BB EREMH
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements NRIE RIS RK -

available for public use.

26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26. AELE2017F12A31BLEFER
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS FE 4B 18 R RVIEET - HaT &
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ARZENAREE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the EENEUHEHRETEZH BB
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards NEBEM—RINREZ2017F12A318 1
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year FERARERNEET TR RERE A
ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted U TR B I F I IS I RR PR AN o 2 E S
in these financial statements. These include the following which Rl RTETERI R REREA T A EAREE
may be relevant to the Group. HEAE -

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on

or after

BET5ASR 2%

RN E LN

HKFRS 9, financial instruments EAVISHRELENESR 2@ T A 1 January 2018
20181 AR

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts BBV ISHRELERIE 55 K 54 1 January 2018
with customers EFPE#Hm 20181 A1RH
HKFRS 16, Leases EEMBREELF 165 HH 1 January 2019
20191 AR
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26. REZE2017F12A31BLEFERS
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 8 518 15 R A REVIERT - FET £
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ARREBOESE @)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REBIETEZFER TR RZER
what the impact of these amendments, new standards BXREAMENEREZ AEEBAIEH
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial RIFTET AR E TR G HEa M mEE
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of BAXENTH BHZENE—FLFER
the new standards which may have a significant impact on TEm e AU THEERI AN EEEHER
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the WEBHIEOTE  BEEREEARREBEH
expected impacts are discussed below. While the following FRTepk Rt YA R BN BRI S E R A
paragraphs set out the Group's assessment to date, the actual AW WERENEANNER SR BT
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as AE - B EREAREEBE20185F6H30H
the assessment completed to date is based on the information LE7XME A #y A HA B 7 i 5 FE R sz S22 IR )
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may EERRE—STE - RNERAEXZMB®RE
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the FERZEAERR  AREE A fe e R F HE
Group's interim financial report for the six months ending 30 ArMEsEesR (BiEREEE) -

June 2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards
are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments ERMBBRELENESR £HTA

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting EXENBMELEREREMRIBEEHAS
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: BT AMERELENE S ERNE95
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new THTA HRRGE BAUWBRELER
requirements for classification and measurement of financial FORSIABHEeREEN Y BRAENE
assets, including the measurement of impairment for financial XoREeMEEREMNTE-S—FHE"
assets. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without BB BWEERMWABTBET LR F395%
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for fEmRALRIIEReRm T AKSRBEDN
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and the DERFENHRT MEBEEELERE
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. go

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 BB R E R Fo5mA2018F1 A1 K
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use ey FEBRBAER WA BER-
the exemption from restating comparative information and REEFEIFEAENLRERNERR Wi
will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening F2018%F1 A1 R By #E a8 B 7 45 g W SR (1]
balance of equity at 1 January 2018. BEFHE

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's AT HAREMBRERNIEHEEN T

financial statements are as follows:

(a)  Classification and measurement (a) DERIE
The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently REECFE RENE BT BHREE
measured at amortised cost will continue with their BlZEosnig - HIBEE AN ARNET 2/
respective classification and measurements upon the CREENDENTERERZTTE -

adoption of HKFRS 9.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

1 50 Win Win Way Construction Holdings Ltd. 18 # 2 £ % B IR 2 /)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair
value change of a financial liability designated at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does
not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement will not have any impact
on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure
either a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the
facts and circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model will
result in earlier recognition of credit losses. Based on a
preliminary assessment, if the Group were to adopt the
new impairment requirements at 31 December 2017,
accumulated impairment loss at that date would not
significantly increase as compared with that recognised
under HKAS 39.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5 step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with customer.

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation.

The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 2(q). Currently, revenue arising from construction
contracts and the provision of services is recognised over
time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods is generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies three
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26. REIE20175F12A8

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these three situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group expects that the new revenue standard is
not likely to have significant impact on the timing of
recognising revenue from sales of piles i.e. recognised
at a point in time. For the provision of construction
and related services, the Group expects that its
contracts with customers would fulfil the criteria
for recognising revenue over time under HKFRS 15.
Methods that can be used under HKFRS 15 to measure
the Group's progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation satisfied over time include (i)
output method (i.e. recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurement of the value to the customer of the
entity’s performance to date) and; (i) input method (i.e.
recognise revenue on the basis of the entity’s efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation).
In measuring the work progress under the new revenue
standard, the Group expects to apply an output
method with reference to progress certificates issued
by the customers or the progress payment applications
submitted to the customers, with additional adjustments
where necessary to depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services promised
to customers for individual projects. So far as the
measurement of progress of the Group's typical contracts
is concerned, the Group expects that there would not be
any significant impact on the revenue recognition profile.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b)

Timing of recognition of contract costs

Under HKFRS 15, if the costs incurred in fulfilling a
contract with a customer are not within the scope of
another standard, assets shall only be recognised if
the costs incurred (i) relate directly to a contract or an
anticipated contract that can be specifically identified;
(i) generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying performance obligations in the
future; and (iii) are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate to satisfied performance obligations (or partially
satisfied performance obligations) in the contracts and
costs for which an entity cannot distinguish whether the
costs relate to unsatisfied performance obligations or to
satisfied performance obligations shall be expensed as
incurred under HKFRS 15.

Currently, contract costs of the Group are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract,
which is measured with reference to the progress
certificates issued by the customers or the progress
payment applications submitted to the customers. Under
HKFRS 15, as contract costs that related to satisfied
performance obligations are expensed as incurred, the
Group expects that the timing of recognition of contract
costs would change and it would no longer be possible
to defer or accrue costs to report a consistent margin
percentage over the term of a contract.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will result
in additional disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition

method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
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26. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26. R&EZE2017F12831BLFER
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 8 518 15 R A REVIERT - FET £
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ARBRENTESE &)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases ERVYBHEEAFE 165 HH

HKFRS 16 provides comprehensive guidance for the BB B RE LR F 165 AT EAREME
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment AREHEEZHIEREBEARNEZE
by lessees and lessors. In particular, HKFRS 16 introduces a E5l o ko BB ImEERIE 16955 A
single lessee accounting model, whereby assets and liabilities —{E B — A A G ERIEER - BRBRKA
are recognised for all leases, subject to limited exceptions. SNMBRIN BT BHERREEREE-
It replaces HKAS 17, Leases and the related interpretations ERRTEBSSTENFE17SEERIEER
including HK(FRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement B BEEE( .l"%ﬁﬁ‘%éfﬁﬁt%*%?%@)%
contains a lease. VRETERBELHF ELFHEMEE

When HKFRS 16 is adopted in the future, it is expected that ERBERABBYBHRE LA E 16580
certain portion of lease commitments will be required to be TEEHERENE THH BAEM R RE
recognised in the statement of financial position as right- FERAERAEEERMEBE WM E
of-use assets and lease liabilities. As disclosed in note 21, 21FTH FE - 1R2017F12 8318 - ANE BB E
at 31 December 2017 the Group's future minimum lease PR RGBS HER Y ERE B A R R &(KHE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amounted E 3R 76,684,0007T Bt - IR B BB
to $6,684,000 for properties. Some of these amounts may HEAIE165E  ZEEPAEKE —
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with AR AEERE  WEERMBENE
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. ﬁﬁ%é@ RN BB R EERIE 165
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to B EZEAITHETFERNAITE LR
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from HEMRREERNE BV HERELERE 16
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after SEARRFTRT LS R I E A E R BRI B HE
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient HARE RNEEGAEEEFFNIMU
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated BELEHEREMEENTEERABRDY
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects SR RBEVL TG BHERANB BB R
of discounting. Based on the preliminary assessment, the HEAF 1SR TEHAEERNGE M ERE
adoption of HKFRS 16 is not expected to have a significant ERERTE-

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or BB WEERIZE 16587420191 A1H 3
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend 2 BB R B S F E R A - RIRPEER
to adopt the standard before its effective date. AEETENE A A HAIRMNEREZER -
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Financial Summary
B 51 2

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group forthe LA N AAEBBANESRFE 2 E2EUREE

last four financial years is as follows. rRBEME-
RESULT EE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T Tt Tt T
Revenue U == 821,907 715,107 628,732 448,719
Profit before income tax FT 15 %% Al i 7 31,206 55,287 67,442 53,886
Income tax expenses Fri5Fif = (8,319) (13,150) (13,115) (9,229)
Profit for the year FEBE 22,887 42137 54,327 44,657
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2017 2016 2015 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T Tt Tt Tt
Total assets BEMRAE 449,667 338,897 438,408 376,914
Total liabilities BERE (210,092) (213,033) (211,273) (202,544)
Net assets FEE 239,575 125,864 227,135 174,370

This annual report is publish in both English and Chinese languages.  ZNGF 3R LA AR 3 3 FI) & o fp 38 SRR AR 4078 (E 0] N7
Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English 8 bA 28 AR & 2 o
versions, the English version shall prevail.
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